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-17.

LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2603

1E.  ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURE (CONT)
(b}  Credit risk exposure
Credit risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties failed to perform as
contracted. The total credit risk for recognised items incloding securities is therefore limited to
the amount carried on the statement of financial position,
Recognised financial instruments
The Scheme minimises concentrations of credit risk by;
= undertaking credit assessment procedures on prospective borrowers;
= dealing with Anstralian regulated banks for cash balances;
= obtaining independent valeations for all loans; and

= maintaining loan w valuation ratios not exceeding 66.67%.

The scheme is exposed to a concentration of credit risk as three individual borrowers represent
547993311 (24%) of monigage loans.

The percentage of loans secured by property in different geographical locations is as follows:

2003 2002
Sydney CBD 10 % 18%
Within 40km of Sydney CBD 10% 7%
New South Wales - Other 3% 4%
Within 40km of Melbourne CBD 7% 1%
Victoria ~ Other 10% 13%
Melbourne — CBD 4% -
Within 40km of Brisbane CBD §% 10%
Queensland ~ Other 5% 23%
Canberra — Other 18% 4%

100% 100%
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.18 -

LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3¢ JUNE 2063

1. ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURE (CONT)
()  Net fair values of financial assets and labilities

The Scheme’s financial assets and Habilities included in the statement of financial position are
carried at amounts that approximate net fair value,

(d) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Scheme may not be able to meet its obligations i relation to
investment actjvities or funding unit holder redemptions.

The liquidity risk associated with the need to satisfy unitholders reguests for redemptions are
mitigated by offering fixed term investment periods for investors and by maintaining cash funds
Lo satisfy usual tevels of demand.

503



Page 22 of 23 Docld: 019579759 Org No:(380 343 288

.19.

LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

DIRECTOR’S DECLARATION

In the opinion of the directors of LM Investment Management Limited, responsible eatity of LM
Mortgage Income Fund:

1. The financial statements ard notes set out on pages 4 to 18 are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001 including:

{a) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the Scheme as at 30 June 2003, and
of its performance, as presented by the results of ws operations and its cash fiows for the
vear ended on that date; and

(b} complying with Accounting Standards in Austratia and the Corporations Regulations
2001,

2. There are reasonable grounds'to beligve that the Scheme will be abie to pay its debts as and
when they become due and payable.

Signed in accor oiution of the directors of LM Investment Management Limited,

Dated at Scfess Phyodhee tis 0™ day ofSQP\eMQJQf 2003.
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.26 -

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO THE UNITHOLDERS OF
LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

Scope

We have audited the financial report of LM Mortgage Tncome Fund (“the Scheme™) for the year ended
30 Tune 2003, consisting of the statement of financial performance, statement of financial position,
statement of cash flows, accompanying notes and the directors’ declaration set out on pages 4 to 19.
The directors of the responsible entity, LM Investment Management Limited, are responsibie for the
financial report. We have conducted an independent audit of this financial report in order to express an
opinion on it to the vnit kolders of the Scheme.

Our audit has beer conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards to provide reasonable
assurance whether the financial report is free of material misstatement. Our procedures included
examination, on a test basis, of evidence supporting the arnounts and other disclosures in the financial
report, and the evaluation of accounting pelicies and significant accounting estimates, These
procedures have been undertaken to form an opinion whether, in al material respects, the financial
report is presented fairly in accordance with Accounting Standards and other mandatory professionai
reporiing requirements in Australia and statutory requirements, so as to present a view which is
consisient with our undesstanding of the Scheme’s financial position, and performance as represented
by the results of its operations and its cash flows.

The audit opinion expressed in this report hag been formed on the above basis.

Audit opinion 7

In our opinion, the financial report of LM Mortgage Income Fund is in accordance with:
{ay  the Corporatioas Act 200!, including:

1) giving a true and fair view of the Scheme’s financial position as at 30 June 2003 and of
its performance for the year ended on that date; and

(iiy complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the Corporations Regulations
2001; and

(b}  other mandatory professional reporting requirements in Australia.

tfHC
KPMG
Gold Coas PG Steer
(- Q@:Jb" 2003 Partner
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o THIS IS ANNEXURE “A" OF “19" PAGES REFERRED TO IN FORM 388 ~ COPY OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND REPORTS ’

LISADARCY - (DIRECTOR}

LM Moertgage Income Fund
ABN: 13 089 343 288

Annual Financial Report
30 June 2004
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-1-
LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
RESPONSIBLE ENTITY'S REPORT

The directors of LM Investment Management Limited {“the Responsible Entity™, the Responsible Entity of LM
Mortgage income Fund (“the Scheme™), present their report together with the financial report of the Scheme, for
the year ended 30 June 2004 and the auditor's report thereon.

Directors

The directors of LM Investment Management Limited, during or singe the end of the financial year, are:

Name Period of directorship

Mr Peter Charles Drake Appointed 3{ fanuary 1997

Mr Peter Aubort Appointed 25 March 1997; resigned 15 September 2003
Mr Geoffrey Murray Black Appointed 31 March 1999

Mr Martyn Andrew Carne Appointed 18 July 2002

Ms Lisa Maree Darcy Appointed 15 September 2003

Mr Breit McMahon Appointed 20 August 2004

Principal activities

The Scheme is a registered managed investment scheme domiciied in Australia, The Scheme's principal activity
for the year was reczipt of unit holders’ funds and investing in first registered morigages, unlisted managed
investment schemes and cash investments in Australia, in accordance with the investment policy of the Scheme as

outlined in the current product disciosure document.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of those activities during the year,
The Scheme did not have any employees during the year.

Scheme Information

The registered affice and pricipal place of business of the Responsible Entity and the Scheme is Level 4, 9
Beach Road, Surfers Paradise, Queensland.

: LM Investment Management Limited has been the Responsible Entity since registration of the scheme in
' September 1999,

Review and results of eperations )

During the year, the Scheme continued to invest funds directly in first registered mortgage ioans, secured by i
commercial properties in Australia. In addition, funds under management increased by $167,040,297, of whick |
$80(,135,000 was as a result of the scheme accepting applications from a related mangged investment scheme

(LM Wholesale Mortgage Income Fund).

Resulis

The financial year ended 30 June 2004 resulied in a net profit of $22,879,338 {200%3: §12,171.381). An increase in
funds under management contributed to the increase in the financial result for the vear.

! Distributions
Distributions paid or payable by the Scheme since the end of the previous financial year were $22,§79,338 (2003:
$12,171,381).
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.2,
LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
RESPONSIBLE ENTITY'S REPORT

Ynits on issue

The Scheme issued 268,640,022 units during the financial year {2003: 179,732,862}, while 101,569,725

units were redeemed (2003: 69,229,593), resulting in a balance of 377,638,198 units on issue as at 30 lune 2003
(2003: 210,567.901). The Scheme had total assets of $380,672,514 as at 30 June 2003 (2003; $213,989,638). The
basis for valuation of the Scheme's assets 15 disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements.

Scheme Assets

At 30 June 2004, LM Mongage Incame Fund held assets to a toal value of $380,672.514
(2003:5213,989,638). The basis for valuation of the assets is disclosed in Note | w the financial statements.

Interests of the Responsible Entity

The following fees were paid to LM Administration Pty Ltd out of scheme property during the financial
year, for funds management and administrative services provided on behalf of the Responsibie Entity:

2004 2003
] $
& Management fees for the vear received directly from LM 4412570 2,234,991
Mortgage Income Fund by LM Administration Pty Lid
® Fees carned by EM Administration Pty Limited from other - -
approved schemes invested in by LM Mongage Income Fund
& Other expenses include administration expenses incurred by 116,827 219,817

the Responsible Entity which are reimbursed in zccordance
with the provisions of the Scheme Constitution, including
Custodian fees.

The Responsible Entity and its associates held 135,311,703 units (2003: 63,029,006) in the Scheme at vear-
end. The aggregate amount receivable frorn LM Adminiseration Py Limited by the Scheme at year end was
$1,935,881 (2003:51,139,343), in relation to prepaid management fees.

Significant changes in the state of affairs

In the opinion of the Responsible Entity, there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the
Scheme that accurred during the financial year under review.

Significant events after balance date

Other than the transaction below, there have been no items, transactions or events of & material and unusual
nature likely, in the opinion of the Responsible Entity, to affect significantly the operations of the Scheme,
the results of those operations, or the siate of affairs of the Scheme, in future financial years.

Subsequent to batance date, & related managed investment scheme, The LM Special Participation Fund has
i entered intc an underwriting arrangement to fund interest payments on behalf of a borrawer where the
Scheme holds the registered first morigage. The receivable owing 1o the related scheme as at September
2004 totals $1,148,895. The security property invoived consists of development Jand located in
Carnperdown, NSW, valued at $46,500,000. The mortgage loan owed to the LM Mongage Income Fund of
£30,225,000 has priority over the related scheme receivable. The Responsible Entity continues 1o monitor
this loan closely and expects no Joss of capital to oceur,
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-3.
LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
RESPONSIBLE ENTITY'S REPORT

Likely developments and expected results

The Responsible Entity does not prapose any changes to the existing business of the Schemme. The $cheme
will continue to pursue is poficy of raising funds and investing those funds in morigage investments in
Australia,

Environmental Regulation

The operations of the Scheme are not subject to any particular and sigrificant envirenmental regulation
under z law of the Commonwealth or a State or Territory. There have been no significant breaches of any
other environmental requirements 2pplicable to the Scheme.

Indemnities and inserance preminums for Officers or Directors

“The constitution of the responsible entity requires it to indemnify all current and former officers of the
Responsible Entity (but not including auditors) out of the propeny of the Responsible Entity against:

{a) any liability for costs and expenses which may be incurred by that person in defending civil or criminal
proceedings in which judgement is given in that persons favour, or in which the person is acquitted, or in
connection with an application in relation to any proceedings in which the court grants relief to the person
under the Corporations Act 2001,

(b a ifability incurred by the person, a5 an officer of the Respansible Entity or of a related body corporate,
to anuther person {other than the Responsible Entity or a related body corporate) unless the liability arises
out of conduct involving a lack of good faith

Daring the financiat period the Responsible Entity has paid an insurance premium in respect of a contract
insuring eack of the Directors of the Responsible Entity. The amount of the premiur is, ender the terms of
the insurance contract, confidential, The liabilities insured include costs and expenses that may be incurred
in defending civil or criminal proceedings that may be brought against the officers in their capacity as
officers of the Responsible Entity. The insurance premium does nol cover auditors,

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors of LM Invesiment Management Limited.

Lisa Darcy
Director
Gold Coast

Date: 23rd September 2004
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-4
LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

Invesiment income
Distribution income
Interest income
Other income

Total revenue
Expenses
Management fees
Custodian fees
Advisor commissicns
Other expenses
Total expenses

Neg profit

Reconciliation of met profit
Distributions paid and payable

Note

2(a)
(k)
2(a)

2004 2003
$ §

- 313,870
29,009,477 15,376,511
40,727 -
25,050,204 15,690,381
4,412,570 2,234,991
70,806 45,928
1,641,469 1,064,192
46,021 173,88%
6,170,866 3,519,000
22,876 338 12,171,381
22,870,318 12171381
22,879,338 12,171,381}

The statement of finarcial performance is 1o be read in confunction with the notes to the financial

staternents set out on pages 7 to 20.
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

.5

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Assets

Cash assets

Receivables

Prepayments

Investmenis
Mortgage loans

AS AT 30 JUNE 2004

Unlisted registered managed investment schemes
Other - related managed investment schemes

Total pssets

Liabilities

Payableg

Funds received in advance
Distributions payable
Total liahilities

Net assets

Unit holders’ funds
Units on issue

Excess distributions

Total unit holders’ funds

The statement of financial position is to be read in conjunction with the notes 1o the financial statements set

out on pages 7 to 20.

Note

10(b)
8
)

Ta)
b}

S5¢a)
5(by

2004 2003
3 $

33,563,008 9,034,197
1,323,398 1,227,029
1,935,881 1,139,543
343,790,184 202,518,940
59,953 59,953

. 9,976
IBOE72514 213,989,638
746,288 134,092

; 2,011,708

2,470,649 1 458,557
1,216,937 3,604,357
377,455,577 210.385.281
377,638,198 210,567.90)
(182,620) (182,620)
377455577 210,385,281
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- 6-
LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

Mote

Cash flows frem operating activities
Interest and distributions received
Management fees paid

Other operating cash Tlows

Other income received

Net cash provided by operating activities i0(a)
Cash flows from investing activities

Nzt payments for mortgage loans

Funds received in advance

Net withdrawai from investment schemes

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash fiow from unitholders’ activities
Applications

Redemptions

Distributions paid

Net cash previded by unit helders® activities
Net increase in cash held

Cash at the beginning of the financial year

Cash at the end of the financial year 10(b)

20064 2003
$ §
28,413,108 15,205,362
(5,216,915} (3,372,968}
{3,149.801) (1,743,994}
40,727 -
20,587,119 10,088 400
(141,271,244 (113,517,313
- 2,011,708
9,976 657,802
(141,261,268)  {110,807,713)
263,176,173 176,759,523
(101,569,725 (69,229.553)
(16,403,398) (8,355,366}
145,203,050 99,174,564
24,528,901 (1,544,749
9,034,167 10,578,946
33,563,008 9,034,197

The statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements set out on

pages 7 to 20.
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{a}

{b)

(e}

{d)

(&)

-7
LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
NQTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been adopted in the preparation of this financial repert
are:

Basis of preparation

The Scheme was constitoted on 24 August 1999 and will terminate on 24 August 2079 unless
terminated earlier in accordance with the provision of the Constitution (a5 amended),

The financial report is a general purpose financial report which has been prepared in accordance with
Accounting Standards, Urgent Issues Group Consensus Views, other authoritative pronouncerments
of the Austrajion Accounting Standards Board and the Corporations Act 2001,

It has been prepared on the basis of historical costs and except where stated, does not take into
accouni changing money values or fair values of assets.

The accouming policies have been consistently applied and except where there isa change in
accounting policy, are consistent with those of the previous financial vear.

Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies are consistent with those of the prior year unless otherwise stated.

Investments

Investments in unlisted managed investment schemes are carried 2t fair vatue. The net fair value of
investments in unkisied managed investment schemes is determined as the net asset value per unit op
the last day of the financial year.

Cash assels

Cash assets includes deposits held at calt with & bank or financial institution and highly liqiid
investments with shor periods to maturity which are readily convertible to cask on hand at the
Responsibie Entity's option and are subject to tnsignificant risk of changes in value.

Mortgage loans

Mortgage loans, which are recorded a1 principal amount less repayments, represent amounts
advanced 1o other parties, which are secured by registercd mongage. The collectability of morigape
loans is assessed and 2 provision made for any debts which are considered doubtful, and far which
insufficient security is held to ensure the ful] amount of the loan and any acerued interest is
recoverable. The net fair value of mortgage loans approximate the carrying amount due to the
variable interest rates of these loans and/or the short term 10 maturiy.
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H

(g}

(h}

]

-R-
LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont)
Income and expenses

Interest income from investments in mortgage loans is brought to account on an acerual basis.
Distribution income from investrnents in related managed investment schemes is breught to account
on an accrual basis. Income received in edvance is deferred and brought to account equaliy over the
televant period. Income, whick in the epinion of the Respansible Entity is non-recoverable, is
written off.

Changes i the net fair value of investments are recognised as income and are determined as the
difference between the fair value at year-end and the fair value as at the prior period end.

Expenses are bought to account on an aceruals basis.

The Responsible Entity and Custodian are entitied under the Constitution, to be reimbursed for
certain expenses incurred in administering the Scheme. The basis on which the £xpenses are
reimbursed is defined in the Constitution. The amount reimbursed was calculated in accordance
with the Constitution.

Adviser Commissions

Advisor commissions ase paid to unit holders” investrnent advisors and are caleulated g5 a percentage
of funds invested. These commissions are paid monthly in arrears and are bought to account on an
accruais basis.

Taxation

Under current legisiation, the Scheme is not subiect to income tax as the taxable income is
distributed in full to the unit holders,

The Scheme fully distributes its distributable income, calculated in accordance with Scheme
constitution and applicable taxation lepislation, to the unit holders who are presently entitled to
inrcome under the constitution.

Goods and services {ax

Expenses incurred by the scheme sre recognised net of the amountof GST that can be recovered
from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). Amounts recognised as receivables and payables at
balance date include the amount of GST payable,

Reduced input tax credits (RITC) recoverable by the Scheme from the ATO are recognised as
receivabies in the Statement of Financial Position.
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

2. INVESTMENT INCOME 2004 2003
$ $
(a}  Non-interest revennes
Distribution income from:
Unrelated managed investment schemes - 313,870
Other income 40,727 -
40,127 313,870
(b} Interest revenues 2004 2003
Average Interest  Average  Average Interest  Average
balance rate balance rate
$ $ o $ $ %
Cash agsets 17,574,339 929,951 529 8,932,884 424312 4,73
Mortgage loans 267,806,500 28,070,526 10.48 138,380,677 14,952,199 10.80
285,380,839 29,009,477 10.17 147,323,561 15,376,511 19).61
3. OTHER EXPENSES
Audit fees 45,504 28292
Sundry - 12,543
Printing - 110,185
Legal fees - 22,869
Other 517 -
46.021 173,889
4. AUDITORS REMUNERATION
Audit Services:
Audit and review of the financial reports 33,504 21,292
Oiher regulatory audit services 8,000 7,000
45,504 28,292

These expenses have been included in other expenses in the statement of financial performance.
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

UNITHOLDERS’ FUNDS 2004 2083
# $ # $
Units on issue
Opening balance 210,567,901 210,567,901 100,064,632 160,064,632
Applications - cash 263,176,173 263,176,173 176,759,523 176,756,523
- reinvestments 5,463,849 5,463,849 2,973,339 2,973,339
Redemptions (108,565,725)  (101.569,725)  (69,229.393)  {69,229,593)
Closing balance 377,638,198 377,638 198 210,567,901 218,567,901
Ciass A - Opening balance 152,174,591 152,174,561 100,064,632 100,064,632
Applications ~ cash 136,660,983 136,660,983 94,052,223 94,052,223
- reinvestments 5,463 849 5,463,849 2,973,339 2,973,339
Redemptions {51,801,225) (51,801,225 {44.,915.603) £44,915.603)
Closing baiance 242 498,198 242,498,198 152,174,591 152,174,591
Ctass B - Opening balance 58,393,310 58,393,310 - -
Applications ~ cash 126,515,190 126,515,190 82,707,300 82,707,300
- reinvestments - - - -
Redemptions (49,768,500)  (49,768,500)  (24313.990)  {24,313,000)
Closing balance 135,140,000 135,140,060 58,393,310 58,393,310
Total closing balance 377,638,198 377,638,198 210,567,901 210,567,901

Class A consists of unit holders who are entitled to receive the deciared distribstion rate.

Class B consists of unit holders with an investment greater than $1,000,000, The distribution rate
will be determined by the Responsible Entity. The Regponsible Entity has the discretion to waive the
whole or part of the 1% trailing commission and the whole or part of its management fee for this

class of unit holders.
All unit holders are entitied to received distributions as declared from zime to time and are entitled 1o

one vote per unit at unit holders’ meetings.

In the event of a winding up of the scheme, all unit holders rank after creditors and are equally
entitied to the proceeds of lquidation.

Excess distributions 2004 2003

Opening balance (182,260) (182,620)
Transfers (io)from statement of financial performance - -

Closing balance (182,260) {182.620)

Excess distributions represent @ return of capital under the constitution of the scheme.
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EM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

6.  DISTRIBUTIONS 2004 2003
$ $
Distributions in respect of the financial ysar comprise:
Total distributions paid 20,408,689 10,712,824
Total distributions payable 2,470,649 1,458,557
22,879,338 12,171,381

As unit holders are presently entitied to the distributable income of the Scheme, no income tax is
payable by the Scheme.

7. ENVESTMENTS

{a) Unlisted regisiered managed investment schemes
Related managed investment schemes at fair value (refer Note B) 59,953 58,953

The Scheme's investment in a refated managed investment scheme is no
tonger earning distributions as the refated scheme s curtently being
wound down and enly has investments in default mortgapes. The
directors do not anticipate any capital loss from the related managed
investment scheme,

(b) Other

Reiated investment entity (refer Note B) - 9.976

{c) Maorigage loans

Mortgage loans (secured by first registered mortgage over real property) 343,790,184 202,518,940
Maturity analysis
Mot longer than 3 months 20,051,524 86,320,878
Longer than 3 months and not longer than 6 months 22,502,465 27,207,587
Longer than 6 months and not Ionger than 12 months 152,928,847 35,106,933
Longer than 12 months and not longer than 18 months 13,288,002 17,675,697
Longer than 18 months but not jonger than 24 months 47,491 446 11,656,057
Longer than 24 months but not longer than 36 months 27,467,900 17,636,788
Longer than 36 months but not longer than 48 months - 2,915,000
343,790,184 202,518,940
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

INVESTMENTS

Mortgage loans {confimed)

As 2t 30 June 2004 there were four mortgage loans in default with principal owstanding of $17,036,056.
Following the sale of ore of the security properties at an independent valuation to a related managed
investment scheme The LM Property Performance Fund, full principal of $7,126,504 was recovered
subsequent to batance date. In addition, subsequent to year end, the total principal outstanding on the two
remataing loans in default has been reduced 1o 34,826,989 with an average loan to value ratio of 31 %, The
direciors consider these loans 1o be fuliy recoverable as the Scheme holds registered first motigages over
the security properties and does not anticipate any capita] loss. Accordingly, ne provision for doubtful
debis has been raised in relation Lo these mortgage loans at vear-end. As at 30 June 2004, four additional
morgage loans have had interest payments underwritten by a2 related managed investment scheme, The LM
Special Participation Fund. Details of the receivahles and information in respect of those loans are set out
below. The loans outstanding have priority over the related scheme receivables.

Loan principal $7,005,370 The security property is a residential (17 units) construction in Surry

Hiils NSW independently valved at $10,639,000. Total interest
paymenis underwritien by the related scheme as at balance date are
$316,962. In addition to this, another refated scherne holds a second
mortgage over this property and has advanced the sum of $699,88%.
The development of the security property is now almost complate,
The Responsible Entity expects the loan to be paid out via the sell-
down of the property by the borrower. The loan continnes to be
closely monttored by the Responsible Entity, and if necessary has
the right to sell the property as mortgagee in possession zs reguired.

Loan principal $17,310,154 The related scheme has entered into a commercial agreement with

the borrower 1o fund interest payments during deiays in both the
issuance of titles from council and the realisation of sale proceeds.
Total interest payments enderwritten by the related scheme s at
balance date are $726.814, The security propenty is a fully
completed residential development at Waitara, NSW valued at
$28,140,000. Seil-down of security is now underway, and loan
principal has been reduced to 515,141,695 as at September 2004.

Loan principa 54,200,000 The security property is vacant land at Ferny Grove, QLD, valued at

§7,000,000. The related scheme has made interest payments totatling
$38,500. The berrowers are seeking appointment of an administratoer
foliowing a meeting of credlitors, Should the administrators be
eppointed, refinancing of the priority debt with other lenders will be
sought. The Responsibie Entity expects full recoverability of this
loan. This loan contirues to be closely monitored and the
Responsible Entity has the right to se!l the property as mortgagee in
possession if required.

Loan principat $2,295,555 The security property is a residential construction at Windsor, NSW,

independently valued at $4,390,00C. The related scheme has made
interest payments of $22,963. The Responsible Eatity expects full
recoverability of this joan.
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND ‘
i
NOTES TG AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2604 !

8. RELATED PARTIES

Responsible Entity

The Respansible Entity of LM Maortgage Income Fund is LM Investment Management Limited
(ABN 68 077 208 461).

Custodian
The Custodian of the Scheme is Trust Company of Australia Limited,
Directors

The names of each person helding the pasition of director of LM Investment Management Limited
during the financial year are as follows;

Nanze Pertod of directorship

Mr Perer Charles Drake Appomted 31 Junuary 1997

Mr Peter Aubort Appointed 25 March 1997; resigned 15 September 2003
Mr Geoffrey Mumray Black Appointed 31 March 1999

Mr Martyn Andrew Came Appointed 18 July 2002

Ms Lisa Maree Darcy Appoinied 15 September 2003

Mt Brett MeMahon Appointed 20 August 2004

Directors’ remuneration

of remuneration paid by the Responsible Entity and its related parties to directors of the responsible

No amounts are paid by the Scheme directly to the directors of the Responsible Entity. The amousnt ‘
|
entity in connection with their responsibiiities for the Scheme is ot separately identified. !

Directors’ holdings of units

The interests of LM Investment Management Limnited and its associates in the scheme at year-end
are set out belaw.

2004 2043
$ $
LM Investment Management Limited 163,018 150,486
Asseciates of LM Investrnent Management Limited 135,148,685 62,878,520

Other fransactions with the Scheme

From time to time the directors of LM Investment Management Limited, or their director-refated
entities, may invest or withdraw from the Scheme. These investients or withdrawals are on the
same terms and conditions as those entered into by other Scheme iavestors, Apart from the details
disclosed in this note, no director has entered into a material contract with the Scheme since the end
of the previous financial year and there were no material contracts invelving directors” interests
subsisting 8t year-end.
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

8  RELATED PARTIES (continned)
Related party transactions

During the year the scheme sold a property as mortgagee in possession at an independent valuation
to arelated managed investment scheme The LM Property Performance Fund, fuil principal of
§7,126,904 was recovered subsequent to haiance date.

LM Special Participation Fund provides income assurance to investors in the Scheme. The LM
Special Participation Fund agrees to underwrite interest paymens to the Scherne at the discretion of
the Responsible Entity, on behalf of borrowers, ‘The LM Special Participation Fund does not
guarantee the payment of all income, or return of capital, During the vear, the Scheme has received
underwriting payments on behalf of borrowers from a retated scheme The LM Special Participation
Fund wotalling $4,414,918 (2003: $794,576) during the year,

Administration and funds managerment services are provided to the Scheme on behalf of the
Responsible Entity by LM Administration Pty Limited, LM Administration Pty Ltd is paid a
management fee for these services directiy from scheme assets, In addition, LM Investment
Management Limited is paid loan origination fees directly from the borrowers.

Remuneration of the Responsible Entity and related entities 2604 2803
$ %

Total remuneration received or due and receivable:
8 Fees for the yzar received directly from LM Mortgage

Income Fund by LM Administration Pty Led 4,412,570 2,234,991
® ¥ees eamed by LM Administration Pty Lid from other

approved schemes invested in by LM Mortgage Income

Fund. - B
&  Other expenses included adiministration expenses incurred

by the Responsible Entity, which are reimbursed to the

Responsible Entity in accordance with the provisions of the

Constitution. 46,021 173,886

Custodian’s remuneration
#  Custodian’s fees paid by Responsibie Entity and
reimbursed by the scheme 70,806 45,928

Balances with related parties

The aggregate amounts receivable from related parties by the
Scheme at balance date are as follows:
LM Administration Pry Lid 1,935,881 1,139,543

These amounts are included in prepayments. No amounts are payable 1o related partes by the
Scheme. The average monthly balance of prepayments during the year was $1,471,564 which was
nor-interest bearing. Interest fercgone on the above amount if calculated at the weighted average
cash rate of 5.29% would have been $77.845. ¥f this revenue had been collected, the sum forepone
would have been paid o LM Administration Piy Ltd as management fees during the vear.
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 36 JUNE 2004

8.  RELATED PARTIES (continued)
Investing activities
The Scheme has no investment in the Responsible Entity or its affiliates.

The Scheme may purchase and sell units in other approved schemes or investment entities operated
by LM Investment Management Limited or its associates in the ordinary ceurse of busingss at
application and redemption prices calculated in accordance with the constitutions of those schemes,
Details of LM Mortgage Income Fund's investments in other schemes operated by LM Investment
Management Limited or its affiliates are set out below:

Seheme name Envestnent at | interest held in Change in Funds invested Funds Contrihution

year end reloted scheme | (abr value of | during the year withdrawn to itvestment
3 at year end investment 3 doring the year income

30 June 2604 : - § $

LM Selecr Mortgage

Income Fund 55.933 G.75% - - - -

LMQ Mornigape

Faciiities - - - - $.97%

3¢ June 2003

LM Select Mortgage

Income Fund 59.953 9.75% . - 657,893 ~

LMQ Mangasge

Facitities 9.976 17.67% - - - -

These investments are on normal terms and conditions.
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

8. RELATED PARTIES (continued)

Unitholder investing activities

Details of holdings in the Scheme by LM Investment Management Limited, its affiliates including
directors and director related persans or other schemes managed by LM Ivestment Management

Limited are set out below:

Entity Investment Interest heid Units fssued Units Distributions paid
at year end in the scheme during the redeemed sad payable
30 June 2004 3 8t year end vear during the b
year
LM Special Panicipation Fund 2,241,000 0,59 % 1,990,060 6.422.000 437,822
Enpineering House Canberra Syndicate - -~ - 1.553.600 75,294
Beiinda ; Drake 5,140 - 584,250 1,511,320 38,711
LM Manaped Performance Fund £.129 000 2,15 % 23,367,000 19,758,000 548,682
.M Wholesole Morgage Income Fund 124,678,000 33.02 % 99.600,000 19,463,060 7.838.526
LM Properzy Performarce Fund 92.008 0.02 % 1,558,190 4,123 500 323,153
LM Investment Management Lid 163,018 0.04 % 12,532 - 18,003
Lisa M Darvy 3,545 - 6500 3.018 78
| Tatal 135311,703 A5.829% 127,118.472 54,835 838 %.79¢,309
36 June 2003
LM Special Pasticipation Fund 6,673,000 3.17% 4,598,300 1,862,300 733,179
Engincering House Canberra Syndicate 3.553.000 1.69% 3,481,750 823,900 210126
Relinda I Drake 932,210 0.445% 922,100 - 20,527
LM Mannged Performance Fond 4,520,000 2.14% £.211,700 3,691,700 244,775
LM Wholesale Morigage Income Fund 44,543,000 21.15% 62,500,000 17.957.00G 2313417
LM Propeny Performance Fund 2.657,310 1.26% 3.460.300 302,990 124,835
LM Investment Management Lid 150,486 007% 21227 - 12,294
Total 63,029,606 2092% 83,195,386 25,137,880 3,668,153

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The scheme operates predominantly in the mortgage investment industry in Australia, with
morigages secured by commercial propenty. The scheme operations and customers are located

within Australia,
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDEYS 30 JUNE 2004

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of net cash provided by operating activities to net profit

2004 2003 |
$ $ I
Net profit 22,879,338 12,471,381 !
Changes in assets and liabilities during the financial year
(Decrease)/increase in payables (1,399,512) {458,419
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments and intercst receivable {892,700 (1,624,562)
Net cash provided by operating activities 20,587,11¢ 10,088,400

Reconciliation of cash

For the purposes of the staterent of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand and at bank, and shori-term
deposits at call. Cash as at the end of the financiai year as shown in the staternent of cash flows is reconciled
to the related items in the statement of financial position as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents 33,563,098 9,034,157

Sales and purchases of securities

Cash flows arising from the sates and purchases of securities are presented on a net basis in the
statement of cash flows.

Reinvesiment of distributions

During the financial year, the scheme issued 5,463,849 units {2003: 2,973,339) as a result of
reinvestment of distributions by unit holders totalling 55,463,849 (2003: $2,973,339). These
rrantsactions have not beea included in the statement of cash flows,

ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURE

Net fair values of financial assets and liabilities

The Scheme's fiiancial assets and labikities included in the statement of financial position are
carried at amounts that approximate net fair value,

Liguidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Scherne may not be able to meet its obligations in relation to

investment activities or funding unit holder redemptions.

The Respensibie Entity ernploys risk management strategies to ensure that the Scheme is abie to
meet its obligations as above. The liquidity risk associated with the need to satisfy unitholders
requests for redemptions are mitigated by offering fixed term investment periods for investors and by
maintaining sufficient cash funds 1o satisfy usual levels of demand for at-call investments.
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LM MORTCGAGE INCOME FUND

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 36 JUNE 2004

ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURE (continwed)

Credit risk exposure

Credit risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterpariies failed to perform as
contracted. The total credit risk for recognised items including securities is therefore limited to

the amount carried on the statement of financial position.

Recognised financial instruments

The Scheme minimises concentrations of credit risk by:

= undertaking credit assessment procedures on prospective borrowers,;
¢ dealing with Australian regulated banks for cash balances;

« pbiaining independent valuations for all loans; and

= maintaining loan to valuation ratios not exceeding 66.67%.

The percentage of loans secured by property in different geographicat tocations is as follows:

2004 2003
Sydney CBD 27 % 1000 %
Within 40km of Sydney CBD 3092 % 1006 %
New South Wales — Other 12.82 % 300 %
Melbourne — CBD 326% 4.00 %
Within 40km of Melboeme CBD 997 % 7.00 %
Victoria — Other B39 % 10.00 %
Brisbane CBD 1.95% -
Within 40km of Brisbane CBD 7.09 % 500 %
Queensiand ~ Other 105 % 500 %
Canberra — Ciher 14.26 % 18.00 %
NT 0.23 % 0.00 %
SA 385% GO0 %
WA 350 % 0.00 %
100.00 % 100.00 %
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

IMPACT OF ADOPTING AASB EQUIVALENTS TO IASB STANDARDS

LM iInvestment Management Lid and the Scheme it is trustee for have commenced transitioning
their accounting policies and financial reporting from current Ausiralian Standards to Australian
equivaients of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). ‘The Trustes has allocated
internal resources and with the help of expen consultants will isolate key areas that may be
impacted by the transition to IFRS. As the Trustee and the scheme have a 30 June year end,
priority has been given to considering the preparation of an opening balance sheet in accordance
AASB equivalents to IFRS as at 1 July 2004, This will form the basis of accounting for
Australian equivalents of IFRS in the future, and is required when the Trustee and the Scheme
prepare their first fully IFRS compliant financial report for the year ended 20 june 2006. Based
apon an initial 2ssessment of the impact of {ransition o IFRS, set out befow are the areas where
accouating policies will change and may have an impact on the financial report. Except where
siated, a1 this lime the Trusiee has not been able to reliably quantify the impacts on the financial
report of the Scheme.

+  Duc to unitholders having the right to redeem their investment, Unithelders’ Funds will no
longer be classed as an equity instrument, and wil] be classed as debt. Based on the batence
at 30 June 2004, $337,455,577 of Usitholders’ Funds will be reclassified inte liabilities angd
distributions into expenses.

¢  Fair value of financial assets will be measured at current market price and will exclude
disposal costs. Currently, financial assets are carried at amounts that approximate nat fair
vatue.

©  Changes in accounting policies will be recognised by restating comparatives, rather than
making current year edjustments via a note disclosure.
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
DIRECTOR’S DECLARATION

In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of LM Investment Management Ltd, I state that:
In the opirion of the directors:

(a})  The financial statements and notes set out on pages 4 ta 20 are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including:

{a)  giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the Scheme as af 30 June 2004, and
its performance, as represented by the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
vear ended on that date: and

(b)  complying with Accounting Standards in Anstraliz and the Corporations Regulations
2001.

(b}  there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Scheme will be able 1o pay its debts as and
wher they become due and payable; and

(c)  the financial statements are in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme’s constitution.

On behalf of the Board of LM Investment Management Lirnited.

Lisa Darcy .
Director
Gold Coast

Date: 23rd September 2004
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Independent audit report to the Unitholders of LM Mortgage Income Fund

Scope

The financial report and direciors’ responsibility

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position, statement of financial
performance, statement of cash flows, accompanying notes to the financial statements, and the
directors’ declaration for LM Mortgage Income Fund (‘the Scheme), for the year ended 30 June

2004, ' |

The directors of the Scheme are responsible for preparing a financial report that gives a true and fair
view of the financial position and performance of the Scheme, and that complies with Accounting
Standards in Australia, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, This includes responsibility
for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and intemal controls that are designed 10
prevent and detect frand and error, and for the accounting policies and accounting estimates
inherent in the financial report.

Audit approach

We conducted an independent audit of the financial report in order to €XPress an opinion on it to the
unitholders of the Scheme. Our-audit was conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing
Standards in order to provide reasonable assurance as to whether the financial report is free of
material misstatement. The nature of an audit is influenced by factors such as the use of
professional judgement, selective testing, the inherent Hmitations of internal control, and the
availability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot guarantee that
all material misstatements have been detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents :
fairly, in accordance with the Corporations Aet 2004, including compiiance with Accounting

Standards in Australia, and other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia, 3 view \
which is consistent with our understanding of the Scheme’s financial position, and of its J
performance as represented by the results of its operations and cash flows, i

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which included:

e examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the ameunts and
disclosures in the financial report, and
@ assessing the appropriateness of the accounting poticies and disclosures used and the

reasonableness of significant aceounting estimates made by the directors.

Wrhile we considered the effectiveness of management’s intermal controls over financial reporiing
when determining the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not desigaed to provide

assurance on internal controls.

We performed procedures to assess whether the substance of business transactions was accurately
refiecied in the financial report, These and our sther procedures did not include consideration or
Judgement of the appropriateness or reasonableness of the business plans or strategies zdopted by
the directors and management of the Scheme,
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ENERNnST & YOUNG

Independence
We are independent of the Scheme, and have met the independence requirements of Australian
professional ethical pronouncements and the Corporations Act 2001,

Audit opinion
In our opinion, the financial report of LM Mortgage Income Fund is in accordance with;
(a) the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of LM Mortgage Income Fund at
30 June 2004 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii)  complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the Corparations
Regulations 2001; and

(b) other-mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia.

Sk
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THIS IS ANNEXURE “A” OF “31” PAGES REFERRED TO IN FORM 385 — COPY OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND REPORTS

Lodde s

LISA DARCY - (DIRECTQ{R)

LM Mortgage Income Fund
ABN: 13 089 343 288

Annual Financial Report
30 June 2005
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
RESPONSIBLE ENTITY’S REPORT

The Directors of LM Investment Management Limited (ABN 68 077 208 461} (“the Responsible
Entiry”), the Responsibie Entity of LM Mortgage Income Fund (“the Scheme™), submit their report
together with the financial report of the Scheme, for the vear ended 30 June 2005 and the auditor’s
report thereon.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of LM Investment Management Limited, during or since the end of the financial year,
are!

Name Period of directorship

Mr Peter Charles Drake Appointed 31 January 1997

Mr Martyn Andrew Carne * Appointed 18 July 2002

Ms Lisa Maree Darcy Appointed 15 September 2003

Mr John Dillon Appointed 8 June 2005

Mr Geoffrey Mumay Black Appointed 31 March 1999; Resigned 20 May 2005
Mr Brett McMahon Appointed 20 August 2004; Resigned 23 May 2005

The Directors were in office fiom the beginning of the financial year witi the date of this report,
unless otherwise stated.

'PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Scheme is a registered managed investment scheme domiciled in Australia, The Scheme’s
principal activity for the year was receipt of unit holders’ funds and investing in first registered
mortgages, unlisied managed investment schemes and cash investments in Australia, in
accordance with the Scherne's Constitution and in accordance with the investment policy of the
Scheme as outlined in the current product disclosure document,

There have been no significant chan ges in the nature of those activities during the year.
The Scheme did not have any employees during the year,
SCHEME INFORMATION

The registered office and principat place of business of the Responsible Entity and the Scheme i3
Level 4, 9 Beach Road, Surfers Paradise, Queensland.

LM Investment Management Limited has been the Responsible Entity since registration of the scheme
in September 1999,

SCHEME ASSETS

At 30 June 2005, LM Mortgage Income Fund held assets totailing $697,769,764
(2004:5380,672,514). The basis for valuation of the assets is disclosed in Note 1 to the financial

statements,
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
RESPONSIBLE ENTITY'S REPORT

REVIEW OF RESULTS AND OPERATIONS

During the year, the Scheme continued to invest funds directly in first registered mortgage ioans,
secured by commercial properties in Australia. In addition, funds under management increased by
§315,038,386, of which $142,757 881 was as a result of the scheme accepting applications from a
related managed investment scheme.

Results

The financial vear ended 30 June 2005 resulted in a net profit of $39,820,485 {2004; $22,879,338).
An increasc in funds under management contributed to the increase in the financial result for the
year,

Distriburions

Distributions paid or payable by the Scheme since the end of the previous financial year were
$39,637,865 (2004: $22,879,338).

UNIT PRICE HISTORY
Scheme name 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
$ ) 5 $ %
As at 30 June 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 100
Year to 30 June .
High 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Low 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.80

UNITS ON ISSUE

The Scheme issued 414,408,430 units during the financial year (2004: 268,640,022), while
95,370,045 units were redeemed (2004: 101,569,725}, resulting in a balance 6f 692,676,583 units
on issue as at 30 June 2005 (2004:377,638,198).

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

In the opinion of the Responsible Entity, there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of
the Schemne that occurred during the financial year under review.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS

The Responsible Entity does not propose any changes to the existing business of the Scheme. The
Scheme will continue to pursue its policy of raising funds and investing those funds in mortgage
investments in Australia.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER BALANCE DATE

There have been no items, transactions or events of a material ang unusual nature likely, in the
opinion of the Responsible Entity, to affect significantiy the operations of the Scheme, the results
of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Schems, in future financial years.
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‘ LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
RESPONSIBLE ENTITY’S REPORT

FEES PAID TO THE RESPOSIBLE ENTITY AND ASSOCIATES

The following fees were paid to LM Administration Pty Ltd out of scheme property during the
financial year, for funds management and administrative services provided on behalf of the
Responsible Entity:

2085 2004
§ )
® Management fees for the financial year received directly from 7,874,560 4,412,570
LM Mortgage Income Fund by LM Administration Pty Ltd

& Other expenses incurred by the Responsible Entity which are 363,935 116,827
reimbursed in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme
Constitution, including administration and custodian fees.

The Responsible Entity and its aséociates held 278,069,583 units (2004: 135,311,703) in the
Scheme at year-end. The sggregate amount receivable from LM Administration Pty Limited by
the Scheme at year end was $3,354,615 (2004:$1,93 5,881}, in relation to prepaid management
fees.

| ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION AND PERFORMANCE

The operations of the Scheme are not subject to any particular or significant environmental
regulation under a law of the Commonwealth or 2 State or Territory. There have been no
significant breaches of any other environmental Tequirements applicable to the Scheme.

INDEMINIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND GFFICERS

The Constitution of the Responsible Entity requires it to indemnify all current and former officers
of the Responsible Entity (but not including auditors) out of the property of the Responsible Entity
againgt:

i {a) any hability for costs and expenses which may be incurred by that person in defending civil or
i criminal proceedings in which judgement is given in that persons favour, or in which the person is
acquitted, or in connection with an application in relation to any proceedings in which the court
grants relief to the person under the Corporations Aet 2001; and

(b} & liability incurred by the person, as an officer of the Responsible Entity or of 2 related body
corporate, to another person {other than the Responsible Entity or a refated body corporate) unless
the liability arises out of conduct involving 2 lack of good faith.

During the financial year, the Responsible Entity paid an insurance premium in respect of a
contract insuring each of the officers of the Responsible Entity. The amount of the premium is,
under the terms of the insurance contract, confidential. The Hzbilities insured include costs and
expenses that may be incurred in defending civil or criminal proceedings that may be brought
against the officers in their capacity as offcers of the Responsible Entity or related body
corporates. The insurance premium does not cover auditors.
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e
.".'Z!IERNST& YOUNG ® 1 Baple Stregt & Tel 61723011 3333
Brisbane QLD 4000 Fax 61730710 3100
Australia BX 165 Brisbane
PO Box 7878

Waterfront Place
Hrishane QLD 4003

Auditor’s Independence Declaration to the Directors’ of LM Investment
Management Limited, as Responsible Entity for the LM Mortgage Income

Fund

In relation to our audit of the financial report of LM Morigage Income Fund for the financial year
ended 30 June 2005, 10 the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of
the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of

professional conduct.

Partner
Brisbane
Date: & September 2005

Lizbitity limized by the Acrountants Seherne. approved
under the Professional Standnrds Act 1994 [NSW
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
RESPONSIBLE ENTITY'S REPORT

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors of LM Investment Management Limited,

Lisa Darcy
Director
Gold Coast

8‘*% September 2005
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

AND DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT

Note
REVENUE AND EXPENSES FROM ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES
Investment income
Interest income 2(b)
Other income 2(a)
Management fees 8
Custodian fees 8
Advisar commissions
Other expenses 3
NET OPERATING INCOME FROM ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES :
DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT
Distributions paid and payable 6
Undistributed Income / (Excess Distributions) 5(b)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 36 JUNE 2005

2085 2004
) 5

836,657 -
49,928,757 29,009,477
96,648 40,727
50,862,062 28,050,204
7,874,560 4,412,570
235,055 70,806
2,692,804 1,641,469
239,158 46,021
11,041,577 6,170,866
39,820,485 22,879,338
39,637,865 22,875,318
182,620 -
39,820,485 22,879,338

The statement of financial performance is to be read in corfunction with the notes to the financial

Statements sei out on pages 9 1o 29.
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2005

Note 2005 2604
$ :)
ASSETS
Cash assets 11{h) 26,917,105 33,563,098
Receivables 9 1,235,301 1,323,308
Prepayments g 3,565,629 1,935,881
Investments
Uniisted registered managed investment schemes () 59,953 59,953
Other 7{(a) 33,321,273 -
Other F{b) 612,670,503 343,790,184
TOTAL ASSETS 697,769,764 380,672,514
J . LIABILITIES
| Payables 976,765 746,288
‘ Funds received in advance 34,035 -
Distributions payable 6 4,082,381 2,470,640
TOTAL LYABILITIES 5,003,181 3,216,937
f NET ASSETS 692,676,583 377455577
l
% UNITHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Units on issue 5{(a) 692,676,583 377,638,198
Undtstributed Income / {Excess distributions) 5(h) - (182.620)
TOTAL UNITHEOLDERS® FUNDS 692,676,583 377,455,577

The statement of financial position is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial stalements set
out on pages 9 to 29.
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2005

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Interest and distributions received
Management fees paid

Other operating cash flows

Other income received

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net payments for mortgage loans
Net cash for other investments
Net withdrawal from investment schemes

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITILES

CASHE FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Applications
Redemptions

Distributions paid
NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net increase in cash held

Cash at the beginning of the financial year

CLOSING CASH CARRIED FORWARD

2005 2004
§ 5
50,517,600 28,513,108
(9,293,202) (5,216,915)
{3,002,243) {3,149,801)
- 40,727

38,222,074 20,587,119
(268,880,318)  (141,271,244)

(33,000,000)

9,976

{101,880,318)

(141,261,268)

403,970,617 263,176,173
(99,370,045)  (101,569,725)
(27,588,320)  (16,403,39%)
217,012,252 145,203,050
13,354,007 24,528,901
33,563,098 9,034,197
46,917,105 33,563,098

The statement of cask flows is to be read in confunction with the notes to the financial statements set out on

pages 9 1o 29,
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF TBE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2005

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been adopted in the preparation of this
financial report are:

Basis of Accounting

The Scheme was constituted on 24 Augost 1999 and will terminate on 24 Aupust 2079
untiess terminated earlier in accordance with the provision of the Constitution {as amended).

The financial report is 2 general purpose financial report which has been prepared in
accordance with the Scheme Constitution, applicable Accounting Standards, Urgent Issues
Group Consensus Views, other authoritative proncuncements of the Australian Accounting
Standards Board and the Corporations Act 2001,

It has been prepared on the basis of historical costs and except where stated, does not take
into account changing money vakes or fzir values of assets.

The accounting policies have been consistently applied and except where there is a change
in accounting policy, are consistent with those of the previous financial year,

Changes in accounting policies

The accounting policies are consistent with those of the prior year unless otherwise stated.

Portfolis Valuation

Investments in unlisted managed investment schemes are carried at fair value. The net fair
value of investments in unlisted managed investment schemes is determined as the net asset
value per unit on the last day of the financial year.

Cash assefs

Cash assets inciudes deposits held at cal] with a bank or financial institution and highly
liquid investments with short periods to maturity which are readily convertible to cash on
hand at the Responsible Entity’s option and are subject to insi gnificant risk of changes in
value.

Mortgage loans

Mortgage loans, which are recorded at principal amount less repayments, represent amounts
advansed to other parties, which are secured by registered mortgage. The coilectability of
mortgage loans is assessed and a provision made for any debts which are considered
doubtful, and for which insufficient security is held, to ensure the full emount of the [oan
and any accrued interest is recoverable. The net fair value af mortgage loans approximate
the carmrying amount due to the variable interest rates of these loans and/or the short term to

maturity.
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TEE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 36 JUNE 2005

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cont’d)
Receivables

Receivables include amounts where settiement has not yet occurred, Interest is accrued at
the reporting date from the time of the last payments.

Payables

Payables are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods and services received,
whether or not billed to the Scheme, and include outstanding settiements on the purchase of
investments and distributions payable.

Revenue and expenses

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow 1o
the Scheme and the revenue can be reliably measured.

Interest income from investments in mortgage loans is brought to account as it acorues.
Distribution income from investments in related managed investment schemes is brought 1o
account on an accrual basis. Income received in advance is deferred and brought to account
equally over the relevant period. Income, which in the opinion of the Responsible Entity is
non-recoverable, is written off,

Changes in the net fair value of investments are recognised as income and are determnined as
the difference between the fair value at year-end and the fair value as at the prior period end.

Expenses are hought to account as they accrue.

The Responsible Entity and Custodian are entitled under the Constitution, to be reimbursed

for certain expenses incurred in administering the Scheme. The basis on which the eXpenses

are reimbursed is defined in the Constitution. The amount reimbursed was calculated in
accordance with the Constitution,

Advisor Comntissions

Advisor commissions are paid to unit holders’ investment advisors and are calculated as a
percentage of funds invested, These commissions are paid monthly in amrears and are bought
to account on an accruals basis.

Comparative Figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with changes in
presentation in this financial report.
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2005

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

Goods and services tax

Expenses incurred by the scheme are recogmised net of the amount of GST that can be
recovered from the Ausiralian Taxation Office (ATCO}. Amounts recopnised as receivables
and payabies at balance date include the amount of GST payabie.

Reduced input tax credits (RITC) recoverable by the Scheme from the ATO are recognised
as receivables in the Statement of Financial Position,

Taxation

Under current iegislation, the Scheme is not subject to income tax as the taxable income is
distributed in fuli to the unit holders. :

Unit Prices

Unit prices are determined in accordance with the Scheme’s Constitution and are calculated
by dividing the Net Fund Value by the number of units on issue,
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2005

INVESTMENT INCOME 2005 2004
$ 5
Non-interest revennes
Distribution incomne from:
Other income 96,648 40,727
PM Capital -~ Enhanced Yield Fund 836,657 -
533,305 40,727
Interest revenues 2005 2004
Average Interest Avg Average Interest Avg
balance rate bslence rate
b $ % 3 % Y
Cash assets 60,977,260 3,244775 532 17,574,339 026957 529
Mortgage loans 469,973,791 46,683,982 993 . 267,806,500 28,070,526 10.48
530,951,051 49928757 540 285380,839 29009477 10.17
OTHER EXPENSES 2005 2064
5 $
Audit fees 54,392 45,504
Product Disclosure Statement Production 54,817 -
Legal fees 5,639 -
Other 13,031 517
127,880 46,021
AUDITORS® REMUNERATION
Audit Services;
Audit and review of the financial reporis 44,392 37,504
Other regulatory audit services 10,000 8,000
54,392 45504

These expenses have been included in other expenses in the statement of financjal performarice.
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 36 JUNE 2005

UNITHOLDERS' FUNDS

Units on issue

Opening batance

Applications - cash
- reinvestments
Redemptions

Closing balance

Class A - Opening balance
Applications ~ cash

- reinvestments
Redemptions
Closing balance

Class B - Opening balance
Applications ~ cash

- reinvestments
Redemptions
Closing balance

Total closing balance

Terms and conditions on units

2005 2664
# $ # $

377,638,198 377,638,398 210,567,901 210,567,901
403,970,618 403,970,618 263,176,173 263,176,173
10,437,812 10437812 5,463,849 5,463,849
_(99,370,045) (99,370,045} (101,569,725) (101.569,725)
692,676,583 692,676,583 377,638,198 377,638,198
242,498,198 242,498,198 152,174,591 152,174,501
222,079,618 222,679,618 136,660,983 136,660,083
. 10437467 10437467 5,463,849 5,463,849
(60,199,700) _(60,199,700)  (51,801,225)  (51.801,225)
414815583 414,815,583 242,498,198 247 408,198
135,140,000 135,140,000 58393310 58,393,310
181,891,000 181,801,000 126,515,190 126,515,190
(39,170,000) _(39,170,000)  (49,768,500)  {49,768,500)
277,861,000 277,861,000 135,140,000 135,140,000
692,676,583 692,676,583 377,638,198 377,638,198

Class A consists of unit holders who are entitied to receive the declared distribution rate.

Class B consists of unit holders with an investment greater than $1,000,000. The distribution
rate will be determined by the Responsible Entity. The Responsible Entity has the discretion
to waive the whole or part of the 1% trailing commission and the whole or part of its

management fee for this class of unit holders.

All unit holders are entitled to receive distributions as declared from time to time that are
dependent on the period of investment in the Scheme and are entitied to one vote per unit at

unit holders” meetings,

Ir: the event of a winding up of the Scheme, all unit holders rank after creditors and are
equally entitled to the proceeds of liquidation.
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2005

UNITHOLDERS’ FUNDS

Excess distributions 2005 2004

Opening balance (132,620) (1?2,620)

Transfers (to)/from statement of financial performance 182,620 -

Closing balance - {182,620 .

Excess distributions represent a retum of capital under the Constitution of the Scheme.

DISTRIBUTIONS
Distributions in respect of the financial year comprise:

Total distributions paid / reinvested 35,555,484 20,408,689
Total distributions payable 4,082,381 2.470,649

39,637,865 22879338

As unit holders arc presently entitled to the distributable income of the Scheme, no income
tax is payable by the Scheme,

INVESTMENTS f

Unlisted registered managed investment schemes

Related mansged investment schemes at fair value
{refer Note 9) 59,953 59,053

The Scheme’s investment in a related manaped investment
scheme is no longer earning distributions s the related
scheme is currently being wound down and only has
investments in default mortgages. The directors do not
anticipate any capital Joss from the related manaped
investment scheme.

Other

PM Capital: Enhanced Yield Fund 33,321,273 -

A1 30 June 20035, the Scheme held 29,791,035 units in the PM Capital Enhanced Yield
Fund. The unit price at the 30 June 2005 was $1.1185. The investment is at call.
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2005

7. INVESTMENTS (cont’d)

{¢) Mortgage lozns 2005 2604
¥ §

Mortgage loans
(secured by first registered mortpage over real property) 612,670,503 343,790,184
Maturity analysis
Not longer than 3 months 124,063,471 80,051,524
Longer than 3 months and not longer than 6 months 74,257,003 22,562,465
Longer than 6 moenths and not lonper than 12 months 186,040,671 152,928,847
Longer than 12 months and not longer than 18 months 104,400,746 13,288,002
Longer than 18 months but not longer than 24 months 71,235,380 47,491,446
Longer than 24 months but not longer than 36 months 15,630,223 27,467,900
Longer than 36 months but not longer than 48 months 2,702,500 -
Longer thar: 36 months but not longer thar: 48 months 31,340,500

612,670,503 343,780,184

As at 30 June 2005 there were four mortgage loans with total principal outstanding of $8,158,730
that were in arrears and being underwritten by a related scheme.

As at 30 June 2005 there were ten mortgage loans with total principal outstanding of $65,787,754
being underwritten by a related scheme by arrangement. Of thase loans, there were two with a
principal outstanding of over $5,000,000, the details of which are disclosed below. These loans
are not in default and the directors consider these loans to be fully recoverabie as the Scheme
holds registered first mortgages over the security properties and does not anticipate any capital
Toss.

Loan Principal $30,225,600 The security property is vacant development land located in
Camperdown, NSW, independently valued at $46,500,000. The
related scheme has made interest payments totalling $3,049,085.
The Responsible Entity expects full recoverability of this loan.

Loan Pringipal $8,924,382 The secarity property is a 30 unit development complex located
at Dee Why, NSW, independently valued at $14,610,000. The
related scheme has made  interest payments totalling $411,522.
The Responsible Entity expects ful} recoverability of this loan.

Interest due but not brought into account from borrowers as at 30 June 2005 was $823,625 |
(2004:5161,050) o ‘
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2605

8. RELATED PARTIES

Responsible Entity

The Responsible Entity of LM Mortgage Income Fund is LM Investment Management
Limited (ABN 68 077 208 461}

Custodian
The Custodian of the Scheme is Trust Company of Australia Linited.
Directors

The names of each person holding the position of director of LM Investment Management
Limited during the financial year are as follows:

Name Period of directorship

Mr Peter Charles Drake Appointed 31 Janmary 1997

Mr Martyn Andrew Came Appointed 18 July 2002

Ms Lisa Maree Darcy Appotnted 15 September 2003

Mr John Dillon Appointed & June 2005

Mr Geoffrey Murray Black Appointed 31 March 1999; Resigned 20 May 2005
Mr Brett McMahon Appointed 20 August 2004; Resigned 23 May 2005

Directors' remuneration

No amounts are paid by the Scheme directly to the directors of the Responsible Entity. The
amount of remuneration: paid by the Responsible Entity and its related parties to directors of
the responsible entity in connection with their responsibilities for the Scheme is separately
identified in Note 15,

Directors’ holdings of units

The interests of LM Investment Management Limited and its associates in the scheme at
year-end are set out below,

2005 2004
5 $
LM Investment Management Limited 176,975 163,018
Associates of LM Investment Management Limited 277,892,609 135,148,685
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2005

RELATED PARTIES (cont’d)
Other transactions with the Scheme

From time to time the directors of LM Investment Manapement Limited, or their director-
related entities, may invest or withdraw from the Scheme. These investments or withdrawals
are on the same terms and conditions as those entered into by other Scheme investors. Apart
from the details disclosed in this note, no director has entered into a material contract with
the Scheme since the end of the previous financial year and there were no material contracts
involving directors’ interests subsisting at year-end.

Related party transactions

LM Special Participation Fund provides income assurance to investors in the Scheme. The
LM Special Participation Fund agrees to underwrite interest payments to the Scheme at the
discretion of the Responsible Entity, on behalf of borrowers. The LM Special Participation
Fund does not guarantee the payment of all income, or return of capital. During the year, the
Scheme has received underwriting payments on behalf of borrowers from a related scheme
The LM Special Participation Fund totalling $9,014,725 (2004: $4,414,918) during the year,

Administration and funds management services are provided to the Scheme on behalf of the
Responsibie Entity by LM Administration Pty Limited. LM Administration Pty Ltd is paid a
management fee for these services directly from scheme assets. In addition, LM Investment
Management Limited is paid loan onigination fees directly from the borrowers.

Remuneration of the Responsible Entity and related entities
2005 2004

8 g

Total remuneration received or due and receivable:
# Fees for the year received dircctly from LM Mortgage

Income Fund by LM Administration Pty Ltd 7,874,560 4,412,570
& Fees eamned by LM Administration Pty Ltd from other

approved schemes invested in by LM Mortgage Income

Fund. - -
8 Other expenses included administration expenses incurred

by the Responsible Entity, which are reimbursed to the

Responsible Entity in accordance with the provisions of

{he Constitution. 127,880 46,021

Custodian’s remuneration
& Custodian’s fees paid by Responsible Entity and
reimbursed by the scheme 235,055 70,806
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2005

8. RELATED PARTIES (cont'd)

Remuneration of the Responsible Entity and related entities

2005 2064
$ $
Balances with related parties
The aggregate amounts receivable from related parties by the
Scheme at balance date are as follows:
LM Administration Pty Ltd . 3,354,615 1,935,881

These amounts are included in prepayments. No amounts are payable to related parties by
the Scheme. The average monthly balance of prepayments during the year was $2,135,274
which was non-interest bearing. Interest foregonre on the sbove amount if caleulated af the
weighted average cash rate of 5.32% would have been $113,602. If this revenue had been
collected, the sum foregone would have been paid to LM Administration Pty Ltd as
management fees during the year,

The LM Managed Performance Fund has second mortgage horrowings on loans that are first
mortgages with the LM Mortgage Income Fund. The LM Managed Performance Fund on
occasion may pay development & construction costs on those related loans.

Investing activities

The Scheme may purchase and sell units in other approved schemes or invesiment entities
operated by LM Investment Management Limited or its associates in the ordinary course of
business at application and redemption prices calculated in accordance with the constitutions
of those schemes. Details of LM Mortgage Income Fund's investments in other schemes
operated by LM Investment Management Limited or its affiliates are set out below;

Schente name Investment | Inferest beid | Number of Number of | Distribution
at year end in refated Units Units paid or
scheme at acquired redeemed payable
38 June 2005 year end during the during the
‘ year year

LM Select Mortgage
Income Fund 59,953 0.00% - - -
30 June 2004

LM Select Mortgage
Income Fund 59,953 0.75% - - -
LMOQ Mortgage '
Facilities - - - 9,876 - i

These investinents are on normal terms and conditions.
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2005

RELATED PARTIES (cont’d}

Unitholder investing activities

Deiails of holdings in the Scheme by LM Investment Management Limited, its affiliates
including directors and director related persons or other schemes managed by LM
Investment Management Limited are set ouf below:

Entity Investment Interest Units issued Units Bistributions

4t yearend | held in the | during the | redeemed paid and
34 Jupe 1905 scheme at vear during the payable

year end year

LM Cumzency Protected Avstratian
Income Fund 14,380,000 2.08% 14,750,660 160,000 444,222
LM Speciat Perticipation Fund 1,185,000 0.17 % 6,330,000 7,386,000 106,630
Belinda § Drake 30,377 - 25,236 - 1,408
LM Managed Performance Fund 2,520,000 0.36 % 14,088,000 { 19,687,000 572,424
LM Wholesaie Mortgape Income
Fund 257,000,000 3700 % 137,322,000 - 14,455,399
LM Property Performance Fund 2,766,000 0.40 % 3,031,000 357,000 59 397
LM Investment Management Ltd 176,975 0.03 % - 13,956 14,052
Lisa M Darcy 1,232 - 8,755 11,068 143
Fotal 278,069,584 | 40,14 % 176,554 99F | 27,825024 | 15,693,673
33 June 2004
LM Currency Protected Australian
Income Fund - - . - -
LM Special Pasticipation Fund 2,241,000 .59 % 1,990,000 : 6422000 45] 822
Engineering House Canberra
Syndicate - - - 3,553,000 75284
Belinda J Drake 5,140 - 584,250 1,511,320 38,711
LM Managed Performance Fund 8,126.060 215 % 23,367,000 19,758,000 548,682
LM Whoiesals Mortgage Income
Fund 124,678,000 | 33.02% 99,600,060 | 19.465.000 7,838,526
LM Property Performance Fund 92,000 0.02 % 1,558,190 | 4,123,500 323,193
LM Investment Management Lid 163,018 0.04 % 12,532 - 18,003
Lisz M Darcy 3.545 - 6,500 3,018 78
Totzl

135,311,703 | 3582¢ 127,118472 | 54.835,838 2,204.30¢
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9. RECEIVABLES

2005 2004
$ $
Interest and distribution receivable 116,941 46,871
Meortgage interest receivable 935,087 1,276,527
GST Receivable 185,783 -
Other 3,490 -
Closing balance 1,235,301 1,323,398

{ 16. NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

{a) Reconcilintion of net operating income from ordinary sctivities to the net cash flows
from operations :

Net profit 39,820,485 22,879,338
Changes in assets and liabilities during the financial year

(Drecrease)/increase in payables 264512 {1,399,512)

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments and interest

receivable {1,862,923) (892,707)
Net cash flow provided by operating activities 38,222,074 20,587,119

(b} Reconciliation of cash !
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand and at bank, and

; shori-temm deposits et call. Cash as at the end of the financial year as shown in the statement

‘ of cash flows is reconciled o the related items in the statement of financial position as foliows:

Cash and cash equivalents 46,917,405 33,563,008

{c} Sales and purchases of securities

Cash flows arising from the sales and purchases of securities are presented on a net basis in
the siatement of cash fiows.

{d} Reinvestment of disiributions
During the financial year, the scheme issued 10,437,812 units (2004: 5,463,849) as a result

of reinvestment of distributions by unit hoiders totailing $10,437,812 (2004: 55,463,849,
These transactions have not been included in the statement of cash flows.
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-27.
LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2005

ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURE (cont*d)

Credit risk exposure

Credit risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties failed to perform as
contracted. The toial credit fisk for recognised items including securities is therefore limited to

the amount carried or the staternent of financial position.
Recognised financial instruments

The Scheme minimises concentrations of credit risk by:

= undertaking credit assessment procedures on prospective borrowers;
+  dealing with Australian regulated banks for cash balances;

= obtaining independent vatuations for all loans; and

*  maintaining an average loan to valuation ratios not exceeding 75% of the mortgage

securities.

The percentage of loans secured by property in different geographical jocations is as follows:

2005 2004

Sydney CBD 1.84 % 271 %
Within 40km of Sydney CBD 26.24 % 30.92 %
New South Wales — Other 20.66 % 12.82%
Melboume —~ CBD 0.44 % 3.26 %
Within 40km of Melboume CBD 12.04 % 9.97 %
Victoria — Other 7.26 % 8.39%
Brisbane CBD 0.00 % 7.95%
Within 40km of Brishane CBD 15.06 % 335%
Queensland - Other 441 % 1.05 %
Canberra ~ Other 6.64 % 12.00 %
NT 0.13% 0.23 %
SA 325% 385%
WA 2.03 % 3.50%

100.00 % 100.00 %

As at 30 June 2005 36.53% of mortgage loans are secured on construction/development property

and (2004: 41.87%) 63.47% on commercial property (2004: 58.13%).

The Scheme’s maximum credit nsk exposure at balance date in relation to mortgage loan is
the carrying value of these assets as indicated in the statement of financial position. No single
mortgage investment exceeds 10% of the Scheme which ensures that there is no concentration

of risk.
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING FART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3 JUNE 2005

ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURE (cont’d)
Ligquidity and cash flow risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Scheme may not be able to meet its obligations in relation to
investiment activities or funding unit holder redemptions.

The Responsibie Entity employs risk manapement strategies to ensure that the Scheme is able
to meet its obligations as above. The liquidity risk associated with the need to satisfy
unitholders requests for redemptions are mitigated by offering fixed term investment periods
for investors and by maintaining sufficient cash funds fo satisfy vsial levels of demand for at-
call investrments.

In order to minimise liguidity risk, management assesses and monitors the liguidity
requirements of both unitholder redemptions and investment activities and ensures that at all
times the Scheme as adeguate cash and cash equivalents to cover any unusual obligations and
that liquidity is managed within the Scheme's policies and limits.

Net fair values of financial assets and Habilities

The Scheme’s financial assets and liabilities included in the statement of financial position are
carried at amounts that approximate net fair value

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The scheme operates predominantly in the mortgage investment industry in Australia, with
mortgages secured by commercial property. The scheme operations and customers are
located within Australia.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTSE

Since 30 June 2005 there has not been any matter or circumstance not otherwise dealt with in
the financial report that has significantly affected or may significantly affect the Scheme.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

At balance date, the total mortgage loan facility availabie to borrowers was $881,046,409
(2004:3548,324,561). Of this amount, $265,845,982 (30.2%) has yet to be drawn down by
borrowers (2004:3203,979,992 (37.2%)).

This amount includes unused line of credit facilities extended to borrowers of $2,469,972
(2004:$494,432).
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 3¢ JUNE 2005

15. DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE DISCLOSURES

f (2}
f )

(%)

(b)
{5

Details of Specified Directors and Specified Executives
Specified directors

The directors of LM Investment Management Lid during the year were:

Name Period of directorship

Mr Peter Charles Drake Appointed 31 January 1997

Mr Martyn Andrew Carne Appointed 18 July 2002

Ms Lisa Maree Darcy Appointed 15 September 2003

Mr John Dillon Appointed 8 June 2005

Mr Geofirey Murray Black Appointed 31 March 1999; Resigned 20 May 2005
Mr Brett McMahon Appointed 20 August 2004; Resigned 23 May 2005
Specified Executives

Neither the LM Mortgage Income Fund nor LM Investment Management Ltd employ persons
deemed to be specified executives of the Scheme.

Remuneration of Specified Directors
Remuneration Policies and Principles

Remuneration of Directors is paid by LM Administration Pty Ltd, appointed by LM
Investment Management Ltd as per its service agreement with that entity. The Directors do
not receive any retnuneration directly from LM Mortgage Income Fund and there are no
agreements in place between the Directors and the Scheme. The remuneration of Directors as
disclosed below has been altocated hased on the sach Directers’ cost of remuneration
applicable to the Scheme. The principles used to alioeate these costs {for disclosure purposes
only} are discussed below.

The Executive Directors of the Board of the Directors of LM Iivestment Managerent Ltd are
responsible for determining and reviewing compensation arrangernents for the Directors of the
Responsible Entity. The Executive directors assess the appropriateness of the nature and
amount of emoluments of the Directors on & perodic basis by reference to relevant
employment market conditions with the overall objective of ensuring maximum stakeholder
benefit from the retention of a high quality board. It is intended that the manner of payment
chosen will be optimal for the recipient without creating undue cost for the Responsible
Entity,

It is the Executive Directors’ policy that employment agreements shall only be entered into
with the Executive Direciors of the Responsibie Entity, but with no other parties.
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FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2005

15. BIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE DISCLOSURES {contd)

(i} Non- executive directors

| Fees paid to non-executive directors are based on decisions made by the Executive Directors,
This takes into account workload requirements and respomnsibilities of each Director. Fees for
duiies as Directors are not paid to executive Directors as their remuneration is provided as
part of their normal terms and conditions.

(iii}  Principles of Directors Remuneration dilocations

For all schemes managed by the Responsible Entity, the cost of total Directoss’ remuneration
has been allocated to each scheme, The Responsible Entity has estimated the amount of time
spent by each Director performing responsibilities and duties to individua! schemes, and on z
percentage basis, has allocated the remuneration cost to each scheme. Where a director has
not spent time specifically on a scheme, but rather has acted in a role as a Director of the
Responsible Entity only, remuneration cost has been alivcated evenly across all schemes,

(iv)  Remuneration of Specified Dircctors

Primary Post Employment
Spetified Salary  Cash Nen Super Retirement Equity Other TOTAL
Directors & Fees  Bonus  Monetary Benefits k3 b
j $ 5 Benefits $
3

Drake, PC* - - - - - - - -
Darcy, LM** 10,643 - - 938 - - 226 11,807
Carne, M 1,978 - - 138 - - - 2,116
Dilion, J 97 - - 9 . - “ 106
Black, G 1,720 - - - - - - 1,720
McMahon, B 1,462 - - - - - - 1,462

15,900 - - 1,085 - - 226 17,211

* Peter Charles Drake is the beneficial owner of 100% of the ordinary shares of the
Responsible Entity, no salary and wages are paid to Peter Drake directly from the company
or any of the schemes.

** As an executive of the Responsible Entity, LM Darcy is entitled to a termination. benefit
that is payable on cessation of employment or a significant chan ge in ownership of the
company. No amount has been reflected in the above diselosures in relation to this
potential future benefit.
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NOTES TO ANB FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2003

I5. DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE DISCLOSURES (contd)

(¢}  Loans to Specified Directors

The Scheme has not made, guaranteed or secured, directly or indirectly any loans to the
Directors or their Director related entities during the period.

Peter Charles Drake is a director and puarsmtor of Australian International [nvestment
Services Pty Ltd which is a joint borrower in a loan faciiity outstanding to the Scheme as at
30 June 2005 for $1,704,353 (MORT 2! 57). This transaction was approved o an arms length
basis and 1s on normal terms and conditions,

(d)  Other Trensactions and Balances with Specified Directors

Other than those items disclosed in the refated party note §, the Scheme has no other
transactions and balances with specified Directors.
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2005

IMPACT OF ADOPTING AASB EQUIVALENTS TO IFRS

LM Invesiment Management Ltd and the Scheme it manages have commenced transitioning
their accounting policies and financial reportin g from current Australian Standards to
Australian Equivalents of Intetnational Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS), The
Responsible Entity has allocated internal resources and with the help of expert consultants
will isolate key areas that may be impacted by the transition to AIFRS. As the Responsible
Entity and the scheme have a 30 June year end, priority has been given to considering the
prepatation of an opening balance sheet in accordznce AASB equivalents to AIFRS as at |
July 2004. This will form the basis of accounting for Australian equivalents of AIFRS in the
future, and is required when the Responsible Entity and the Scheme prepare their first fislly
AIFRS compliant financial report for the year ended 30 June 2006.

Based upon an initial assessment of the irmpact of transition to IFRS, set out below are the
areas where accounting policies are expected to change on adoption of AJFRS and our best
estimate of the quantitative impact of the changes on total equity as at the date of transition
and 30 June 2005 and on the net profit for the year ended 30 June 2005,

The figures disclosed are the Responsible Entity’s best estimates of the quantitative impact of
the changes as at the date of preparing the 30 June 2005 financial report. The actual effects
of transition to ATFRS may differ from the estimates disclosed due to

(1) ongoing work being undertaken by the AIFRS project teams;

(b} potential amendments to AIFRSs and Interpretations thereof bein g issued by the standard-
setters and IFRIC; and

(¢} emerging accepted practice in the interpretation and appiication of AIFRS and UIG
Interpretations.

Recenciliation of unitheiders® funds under AGAAP to that under AIFRS

HNotes 30 June I July
2005% 2004*
3 $
Total unitholders® funds under AGAAP i ) 692,676,583 377,455,577
Derecognition of distributions paid and paysble [§1)) 39,820,485 -
Reclassification of unitholders’ funds : (iii) (732,497,068) -
Total unitholders® funds under AIFRS (v} - 371455577

* This eolumn represents the adjustment as at the date of transition to AIFRS,

** This column represents the cumulative adjustment as at the date of fransition o
AIFRS and those for the year ended 30 June 2005,

561



Page 31 of 35 Docld: 022294914 Org No:089 343 288

16.
(a}
(i)

(i)

()

t)

-38-
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2005

IMPACT OF ADOPTING AASB EQUIVALENTS TO IFRS {cont’d)
Reconciliation of vaitholders’ funds under AGAAP to that under ATFRS (contd)

Under AASB 132 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures and Presentation”, contractual
obligations are regarded as financial liabilities. As unitholders' have the ability to redeem units
from the Scheme, all unitholders’ funds will be classified as labilities of the Scheme, rather
then as equity. As distributions paid and payable make up a proportion of unitholders’ funds,
taey will be classified as interest expense rather then distributions to equity holders.

It should be noted that the classification of the Scheme’s units a5 a financial lizbility would not
alter the underlying economic interest of the unithoiders in the net assets and the net income
gttributable to unithelders of the Scheme.

The Responsible Entity will apply the exemption provided in AASB 1 “First time Adoption
of Austratian Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards” which permits
entities not fo apply the requirements of AASB 132 “Financial Instruments: Presentation and
Disclosures” and AASR 139 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” for the
financial year ended 30 June 2005. The standards will be applied from 1 July 2005,

Reconciliation of met profit presented under AGAAP to that under AIFRS

Notes Yezr Ended
30 June 2005
%
Net profit as reported under AGAAP 39,826,485
Recognition of interest expense ') (39,637,865}
Net Profit under AIFRS 182,620

As detailed above, all unitholders’ funds will be recognised as liabilities of the Scheme, rather
than a5 equity, Distributions paid and payable made up of unithoiders’ funds will be classified
as interesl expense in the Statement of Financial Performarnce,

Restated ATFRS Statement of Cash Fiows for the year ended 30 June 2005

No material tmpacts are expected to the cash flows presented under AGAAP on adoption of
AIFRS.
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16. IMPACT OF ADOPTING AASB EQUIVALENTS TO IFRS (contd)

d

Classification of Assets and Liabilities

Under AIFRS AASB 139 requires assets to be classified into four categories and measured
according to the relevant classification. These categories are:

Held for trading or otherwise designated at fair value through profit and loss;
Held to maturity investments;

Loans and receivables: and

Available for sale financial assets,

® & p g

AASB 130 requires liabilities to be measured at:

°  Amortised cost using the effective interest rata method; except for
¢  Financial lisbilities at fair vaive through the profit and loss,

The Scheme does not hold any assets or liabilities as held for trading,

Morigage loans

It is anticipated that mortgage loans will be classified as loans and recetvables. These will be
measured at amartised cost using the effective interest rate method. Under AASE | 18 and 132
fee revenue and expenses that forms an integral part of the effective interest rate is required to
be deferred. Fees that form an integral part of the effective interest rate of the loan will be
recognised as part of the carrying value and amoriised through the effective interest rate.
Management has assessed that there will be no material impact that would be recognised under
AASB 132 on transition at ! Jaly 2003,

Investments

It 1s anticipated that other investments will be classified as either held to maturity investments
or available for saie financial assets depending on the type of investmernt. Those investments
that are held to maturity will be measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method. The investments that are classified as available for sale will be measured at & fair
value basis each reporting period, with any movement in fair value being reflected through the
equity reserve,
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
DIRECTOR'S BECLARATION
30 JUNE 2085

In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of LM Investment Management Ltd, | state thay:
In the opinion of the directors:

(a) The financial statements and notes of the Registered Scheme set out on pages 6 to 29 are in
accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

{a) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of the Schere as at 30 June 20053,
and its performance, as represented by the results of its operations and its cash fiows for
the year ended on that date; and

() complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the Corporations Regulations
2001,

{6}  there are reasonable grounds to beligve that the Scheme will be sbie to pay ifs debts as and
when they become due and payable; and

{c) the financial statements are in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme’s Constitution,

On behalf of the Board

LM Investment Management Limited.

Lisa Darcy
Director
Gold Coast

September 2005
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ENErnST & YOUNG
& | Eagle Seet & Tel 61730113333
Hrlshan_e QLD 4000 Fax &) 73011 3100
Australin DX 165 Brishane
PO Box 7878

Wazettront Place
Brisbane QLD 4007

Independent audit report to the Unitholders of LM Mortgage Tncome Fund

Scope

The financial report and directors’ responsibility

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position, statersent of financial
performance, statement of cash flows, accompanying notes 1o the financia! statements, and the
directors® declaration for LM Mortgage Income Fund (“the Scheme™), for the year ended 30 June

2005.

The directors of the Scheme are responsible for preparing a financial report that gives a true and fair
view of the financial position and performance of the Scheme, and that complies with Accounting
Standards in Australia, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, This includes responsibility
for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed to
prevent and detect fraud and error, and for the accounting policies and aceounting estimates

inherent in the financial report.

Audit approach
We conducted an independent audit of the financial report in order to express an opinion on it to the

unitholders of the Scheme. Our audit was conducted in accordance with Anstralian Auditing
Standards in order to provide rcasonable assurance as to whether the financial report is free of
material misstatement. The nature of an audit is influenced by factors such as the use of
professiona! judgement, selective testing, the inherent limitations of internal control, and the
availability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot guarantee that
all matetial misstatements have been detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report presents
fairly, in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including compliance with Accounting
Standards in Australia, and other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia, a view
which is consistent with our understanding of the Scheme’s financial position, and of its
performance as represented by the results of its operations and cash flows.

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which incloded:

e examining, o a test basis, information to provide evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report, and
e assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and disclosures used and the

reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directars,

While we considered the effectiveness of manapement’s internal controls over financial reporting
when determining the nature and extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed to provide

assurance on intemnal controis.

Linbility limited by the Accountanis Selerme, approved
witder the Professional Standards Act 1999 {NSW)
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ENERNST & YOUNG

We performed procedures {0 assess whether the substance of business transactions was accurately
reflected in the financial report. These and our other procedures did not include consideration or

Judgement of the appropriateness or reasonableness of the business plans or strategies adopted by
the directors and management of the Scheme.

Independence
We are independent of the Scheme, and have met the independence requirements of Australian

professional ethical pronouncements and the Corporations Act 260F. We have given o the
directors of the Scheme a written Auditor’s Independence Deciaration, a copy of which is included
in the Directors’ Report. In additior: to our audit of the financial report, we were engaged to

' undertake the services disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The provision of these

services has not impaired our independence.

Audit opinion
In our opinion, the financial report of LM Mortgage Income Fund is in accordance with:
(a)  the Corporations Act 2001, inciuding:
(i) giving a true and fair view of the financial position of LM Mortgage Income Fund a2
30 June 2005 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and
(i}  complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and the Corporations Regulations
2001; and
(b}  other mandatory financial reporting requirements in Australia.

P

Ermnst & Young

Mike Meintjes
Partner
Brisbane
Date: 8 Septemnber 2005
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AI.E‘T'RALIAN SIBC.URITH’.S

i

Form 388

Cotporations Act 2001

704, 295, T98-300, 307, 368, 118, 3N, 327 |
Corporatians Regulatians N

19408

Austraiian Securities &

| Investments Commission Nﬂ}ﬂﬂﬂ]ﬁ]ll]lmmﬁmlﬂ

231

Copy of financial statements and reports

Refated forms:
Form 5137 Appoinimen! of seherma auditor ~

If there is insufficient space in any section of the form, you may photocopy the relevant page(s) and submit as pars of this (odgement

Company details Company nama
- WMl MOATBAGE INCOMEFURND

f "L 4% 247 ARE ]

|

J Ledgement details Whe should ASIC contact ¥ there is a guery phout this form?
Name

3

| [ Snacryn Halhiwell LM investent wancgement LTa |
i ASIC. registered Sgent mumber {f appiiczbie) 7
| [nld Pe ]
| Telephone number a0 MG 1335

o 55 fyuy s00 iy ]
Postal addrass '
> Bow y'BS il
(Srlas, Porachise |, QUD . GZiT |

Please provide an estimate of the time taken lo complete this form.

hrs ming
1 Reason for lodgement of statement and reports
Tick appropriate box D A public company or a discivsing enty which is not a regisiered scheme or prascribed interest [A)
, ungetaking
Megiszemd scheme {Whare a new autiior has been appointed fo 2 registered scheme, [
Form 5137 Appoinitnent of scheme sudiar must be ladged;
D Amendment of inancial stalerments ar directars’ report (company} 1€y
D A  of financial stal ot direstors’ ceport {registered schema)’ (5]
[] Alarge proprietary company that is not a disclosing antity H)
D A smafl propriglary company 1hat is controfled by 8 foreign company for 2l or pert of the period and U]
whete the company’s niofil or loss for dhg perind Is not covered by the statements lodged with ASIC by 3

; registered fureign campany, company, regislared seheme, or disdlosing enfity

T Asmeliproprietary company that Is fequesled by ASIC fo prepare and lodge statements and reports 8]
D A prescribed interest underaking thal is a disciosing antity (K}
Dates on which financiai year heging  Financial year egins Financial yeat ends
and ends BB;@@EC} o Bllojblklldid
DM M o oM oMY Y
Dae of annual generat meating [:] E] E] D
{if applicable) O [M M‘
ASIC Form 388 3 February 2006 Pape 1ol
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2 Details of large proprietary company

if the company is a targe proprietary company that is nat 2 disclosing entity, please complete the Toliowing information as
at the end of the financial year for which the financial statements relate;

A Whetis the consofidated gross oparating reventre of the large proprietary company Bnd the entlies that i controis?

l i

B Whal is the valie of the consofidated gross assels of the large proprietary company and ihe entities that it centrols?

l .

G How many employess are emploved by the large proprietary company and the enlifies that & controls?

! |

D How many members does the large proprietary company have?

3 Auditor report

Wore the financial statermants audited?

Yes

Ne

[E if o, is theve & dass crder exemplion curent for audi reliel?
D Yes
Ej Ky

W yes, does the auditor's tepart (s308) for the financial year contain a staterment of;
Feasons for the auditor no! being satisfied as to the matlers referred (o in 53077

D Yes
g No

Delalls of the defick faliure or shoricoming g any mane! referred to in s3077
E:} Yes
ﬂ No

4 Details of current auditor

Wehete a new auditor has been appointed  Auditer regltration number flor individuat suditer o authadsed sudit company)
to a regislerad scheme, Form 5237 i
Anpointment of scheme puditor must be

Iodged Family name Given name ]
or
Company name
FErmsT & Noung i
ACN/ABN ~ :
[(Is2 %% 1271 b9 |
[+:4

Fim name {if applicable}

ASIC Form 388 3 Februaty 2006 Pags 2c!3
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" 4 Continued... Details of current audifor

Dffice, unit, leve!

[wereREeonT PLACE ]
Sireet number and Sires! name

(1 EatLe <trEsT ]
SuburbiCity StatelTerritory

[BRISBANE | [ |
Postoade Cauntry {if not Australia

Moco | [ i

Date of appoiniment
wlofnjilal

!
0 o MM

5 Statements and reporis to be attached to this form

Financiai siatemants for the year (as par ss285(2))
Statement of financial pedormence for the year (orofit and foss statement}
Statement of inancial position as at the end of the yesr (balance sheel)
Statement of cash flows for the year
# required by socaunting standards - consoligsted profit & foss statement, balance shee! and statement of cash
Fows

Hotes to financial statements [as par ss205(3))

Disrlosures mquired by the regulations

Notes raguired by the acocounting standards

Any other informsation necessary fo give & true and fair view (see 5267}
The directors’ declaration abgul the staterments and nofes (as per ss 285(4))
The direclors' reporl for the year {as per s 208 to 300)

Aaditor's report required under sections 308 and 314

Signature | cedify that the altached documents marked { j are a true copy of the annual reports required under Section 319 ;
Name 1
[LisA DAecy | !
Signature FahY I
Capacity l
Direcior
Company secretary
Dale Eﬂjd
RO, O]
W m oMy oY
Lodgement Sent compteted and signed forms to: Far help of more itformation
Austrafian Sewr‘ﬂies and angstments Commission, Telephone 03 5177 3988
PO Box 4000, Gippstand Mail Centre VIC 3841, Email ifo. pnqui i
Web WWW, BSIC gy,
ASIC Form 388 3 February 2006 Page 3 ofd
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X 1
N

‘T-HIS IS ANNEXURE “A"™ OF “42" PAGES REFERRED TO IN FORM 388 - COPY OF FINANCIAL )
"~ STATEMENTS AND REPORTS

. . Z l
!
LISA DARCY - (DIRECTOR)

EM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

ARBN: 66 482 247 488
Annual Report
For the year ended 30 June 2006

570



Page 5 of 42 Docld: (23134667 Org No:(G89 343 288

‘ ' LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

ABN: 66 482 247 488

Annual Report — 30 June 2006

Contents

DIRECTORS® REPORT
! INCOME STATEMENT ..ot s
i BALANCE SHEET ......
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS..., 9
DIRECTORS” DECLARATION
INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT oo

The responsitle entity of LM Mortgage income Fund is LM Investment Management [td (ABN 6§ 077 208 461). The
responsible entity’s registered office is Leve! 4, RSL Building, § Beach Road, Surfers Paradise QLD 4217.
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Directors® Report

DIRECTGRS’ REPORT

The directors of LM Investment Management Limited, the Responsibie Entity of the LM Mortgage income Fund,
present their report together with the consolidated financial report of the LM Mortgage Income Fund (“the
Scheme™) and its subsidiary (“the consolidated entity™), for the vear ended 30 June 2006. The dircctors’ report is
not pari of the financial report.

DIRECTORS

The foltowing persons held ofTice as directors of LM Investment Management Limited, during the halfyear or
since the end of the helf-year and up to the date of this report:

Name Period of directorship
Mr Peter Charles Drake Appointed 31 January 1997
Mr Maryn Andrew Carne Appointed 18 July 2002; resigned 6 June 2006
Ms Lisa Maree Darcy Appointed 15 September 2003
Mr John Dilion Appointed 8 June 2005
; Mr Eghard van der ioven Appointed 22 Junc 2006
i
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Scheme continued the principal activity of investing unitholders” funds in repistered
first mortgages, unlisted managed investment schemnes and cash investments i Australia, in accordance with
the Scheme’s Constitution and in accordance with the invesiment policy of the Scheme as outlined in the
current product disciosure document,

The Scheme did not have any employees during the year,
SCHEME INFORMATION

The Scheme is an Australian registered scheme and was constituted in September 1999, The responsible entity of
LM Mortgage income Fund is LM Investment Management Limited, who has been the Responsible Eatity since
repistration of the Scheme.,

The registered office and principal place of business of the Responsible Entity and the Scheme is Level 4,
Beach Road, Surfers Paradise, Queensland. .

REVIEW OF RESULTS AND OPERATIONS

Results

During the vear, the Scheme continued to invest directly in registered first mortgage loans secured by
property in Australiz, unlisted managed investment schemes and cash assets.

The change in net assets atiributable to the unitholders of the Scheme is presented in the income Statement.
Net profit attributable to unitholders for the year ended 30 June 2006 was $62,376,577 {2005: $39,820,485).

Funds under management increased by $184,998,266 (2005: $315,038,386) to $877,432,931 {2005:
$692,676,583), of which $85,139,000 was as a result of the Scheme accepting applications from related
managed tnvesiment schemes (2005: $142,757,881).

During the year, the Scheme has gained control of a newly formed company, LM MIF Investments Pty
Limited incorporated to invest in unrelated investment products on behalf of the scheme. LM MIF
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Directors® Report

Investments Pty Limited provides a regular income strear to the Scheme a5 a result of the Scheme providing
a1 interest bearing lozn facility to LM MIF Investments Pty Limited.

The Scheme previously had an agreement with 2 related scheme whereby the related scheme provided
underwriting facilities by arrangement or for loans in defauit. This agreement was terminated in April 2006
and the Scheme now bears the full credit risk assootated with loans that are in default, During the year, the
Scheme purchased receivables of the LM Special Pariicipation Fund totalling $8,110,374 at 20 April 2006.

From | June 2006 the Scheme now recognises loan origination fee incotne from borrowers that enter into
new financing arrangements with the Scheme. This incoine was previcusly recognised by the responsible
entity. The Scheme reimburses the responsible entity for its administration of loan origination services,

Impact of applying Australian equivalents to Internatiounl Financial Reporting Standards (AYFRS) for
financial reporting
This was the firsl year the Scheme applied AIFRS for finarcial reporting purposes.

Unitholders’ funds

AIFRS requires net assets ariributable to unitholders 10 be clussified and disclosed as a Hability in the balance
sheet Conseguently, the Scheme has recognised distributions and changes in net assets attributable to
unitholders as 2 finance cost in the income statement.

1t is the opinion of the directors that adopting AIFRS does not have uni pricing consequences, as the basis of
unit price accounting is as outlined in the Scheme Constitution, The key differetices between wnit pricing and
AIFRS Financial Reporting have been cutlined below:

34 Jun 2066 30 Jun 2005
§ $
Net gssets for unit pricing purposes 877,674,880 692,676,583

AIFRS reclassification of unitholders' funds to Habilitiss (877,674,880)  (692,676,583)

Net assets under AIFRS - -

Results
The performance of the Scheme, as represented by the resulis of its operations, was as follows:
30 Jun 2066 30 Jun 2005

$ &
Net operating income/(loss) before distributions 62,376,577 39,637,865
AIFRS financing costs:
Distributions to unithoiders ’ {62,376,577y  (39,455,245)
(increase) / decrease in net assets attributable to unitholders - (182,62)
Net profit under ATFRS - -
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' LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Directors® Report

UNITS ON ISSUE

There were §77,674,849 units on issue at 30 June 2006 (2005: 692,676,583}, During the year 404,781,175
units were issued by the Scheme (2005: 414,408,430 and 219,782,909 were withdrawn (2005: 99,370,045).

SCHEME ASSETS

At 30 June 2006, the Scheme held asscts to & totat value of $914,245,175 {2005: $697,769,764). The basis
for valuation of assets is disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements.

FEES PAID TO THE RESPONSIBLE ENTITY AND ASSQCLIATES

The fellowing fees were paid to LM Investment Management Limited and its associated companies out of
Scheme property during the financial yesr, for funds manegement and administrative services provided an
behalf of the Responsible Entity:

j 2066 2005

§ $
@ Management fees for the financial year received directly from LM 10,683,880 7,874,560
Morigage Income Fund by LM Administration Pty Limited
®  Other expenses incurred by the Responsible Entity which are reimbursed 794,401 363,935

in accordance with the provisions of the Constitution, including
administration and custodian fees

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

On 22 Deeowmber 2005, the Scheme gained control of 2 newly formed entity, LM MIF investment Pty
Limited, an entity incorporated 1o invest in ‘at call’ securities on behalf of the Scheme. At the date of
inception, the assets and lisbilities of LM MIF Investments Pty Limited were nil. The LM MIF advances
unsecured, interest bearing funds to LM MIF Investments Pty Ltd. The interest rate charged on the loan
approximates the return achieved from the investments undertaken on the Scheme’s behalf, The RE does not
receive any fess as a result of this loan.

The Scheme previously had sn agreement with a related scheme whereby the related scheme provided
underwriting facilities by arrangement or for loans in default, This agreement was terminated in April 2006
and the Scheme now bears the full credit risk zssocizted with loans that are in default,

In the opinion of the directors, there were no other significant changes in the state of affairs of the Scheme
that occurred during the financial year under review.

The Scheme now recognises Joan origination fee income from borrowers that enter into new financing -
arrangements with the Scheme. This income was previously recognised by the Responsible Entity.

574



Page 9 of 42 Docfd: (23134667 Org No:089 343 288

4

LM MORTGAGE INCGME FUND
Directors® Report

SIGNIFECANT EVENTS AFTER THE BAUANCE DATE

There has been no matter or circumstance that bas arisen sines the end of the financial year that has
significantly affected or may effect the Scheme’s operations in future financial years, the results of those
opezations of the Scheme's state of affairs i future years,

Since 30 June 2006, martgage loans in default totalling 89,098,941 and morigage foans in amrears totaliing
$19,311,013 have been recovered in full,

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXYPECTED RESULTS

Fusther information on likely developiments o the operation of the Scheme and the expected results of those
operations hag not been included in this report because the responsibie eatity belicves it would likely to result
in unreasonable prejudice to the Scheme,

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION AND PERFORMANCE

The operations of the Scheme are not subject to any particular or significant enviroamentadl repulations under
alaw of the Commonwealth or & State or Territory. There have bean zo known significant breaches of any
other environmental requiversents applicable to the Scheme,

~ INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

No insursnce preminms are paid for out of the assets of the Scheme in regards to insurance cover provided to
cither the officers of LM Investment Management Lid or the suditors of the Scheme, So jong es the officers
of LM Investment Management Ltd act in accordance with the Scheme Constitution and the Law, the officers
remain indemnified out of the assets of the Scheme against losses incurred while acting on behalf of the
Seheme. The anditors of the Scheme ace in no way indemnified out of the assets of the Scheme.

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE PECLARATION

A copy of the auditor’s independence ‘dcciamtioﬂ #s required wader section 307C of the Corpomtio.ns Ast
! 2001 ig set out on pege 5.

‘ Signed in accordance with & resolution of the Directars of LM Investment Management Limited.

! _ Lisa Darcy
: Direstar
Gold Coast

21 August 2006
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EHERNST &YOUNG & 1 faple Streel ST B17I0I I
\ s Brisbane QLD 4060 fax 61730173100
Australip
PO Boy 7878

Wargrfrond Place $
Brishane QLD 4001

Auditer’s Independence Declaration to the Directors of LM Investment ‘
Management Limited as Responsible Entity for LM Mortgage Income Fund :

In relation t our audit of the financial report of LM Montgage Income Fund for the financial year
ended 30 June 2006, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of
the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of
professional conduct.

S A

Emst & Young

Linbility limited by o stheme approved under
Profcssionnl Standards Legistation
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 30 June 2006

Tneome

Changes in the fair value of investments
Interest revenue — loans and advances
Other income

Total vevenue and other income

Expenses

Management fees

Custodian fees

Adivisor commisstons

Impairment losses on loans and receivables
Borrowing costs

Legal fees

Other sxpenses

Trlal expenses excluding distributions fo
wunitholders

Net profit attributable fo unitholders
Distributions to unitholders

Changes in ne¥ asseis afiribuiable to
unitholders

Income lnx expense

Charnges in nef asseis atiributable fo
unitholders after income tax expense

Notes

3a
3b
3a

30 June 2006 30 June 2005
)
Consolidated Scheme Scheme
2,136,504 1,123,754 836,657
76,649,346 T1,579,140 49,928,757
3,257,617 3,257,617 96,648
82,043 467 81,960,511 50,862,062
10,683,880 10,683,880 7,874,560
305,059 305,059 235,055
4,180,916 4,180,916 2,692,804
2,714,072 2,74.07% -
1,148,900 1,149,900 .
7,262 7,262 5,639
625 801 542,845 233,519
19,666,890 19,583,934
62,376,577 62,316,577 11,041,577
(62,376,577 (62,376,577) (39,637,865 )

- 182,620
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
BALANCE SHEET
As at 30 June 2006
30 June 2006 38 June 2005
Consolidated Scheme Scheme

Note ) g g
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 13 32,995,697 32,645,002 46,917,108
Receivables i 4,341,766 4,278,131 1,235,304
Prepayments 4,729,647 4,729,647 3,565,629
investments 8 5,659,827 1 33,381,226
Loans and receivables g 866,552,394 872,592,194 612,676,503
Totai assets 914,319,331 614,245,175 697,769,764
EIABILITIES
Pavables 946,816 872,663 S76,765
Funds received in advance - - 34,035
Interest bearing loans and advances it 30,416,662 30,416,662 -
Distributions payable 5,281,004 5,281,001 4,082,381
TOTAL LIABILITIES EXCLUDING NET
ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO
UNITHOLDERS 36,644,482 36,570,326 5083 18]
NET ASSETS ATTRIBUTARLE TO
UNITHOLDERS 877,674,849 877,674,849 692,676,583

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Under AIFRS, net assets of the Scheme that are atwibutable to unitholders are classified as a liability rather than

For the year ended 30 June 2086

equity. Asa resul there was no equity at the start or end of the year. A Statement of Changes in Net Assels
Attributable fo Unitholders is disciosed in notce 6,
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the vear ended 39 June 2006

30 June 2006 30 June 2005
Notes  Consolidated Scheme Scheme
§ $ $
Cash flows from opcrating activities
Interest and distributions received 83,326,015 83,243,059 50,517,609
Management fees paid {11,621,560} (11,631,561} {£,293,262)
Other operaling expenses {14,742,98%) (14,491,321) {1,002,243)
GST (paidyreceived 911414 911,414 -
Net cash inflow/{outflow) from operating £3(b)
activities 57,862,878 58,031,551 38,222,074
Cash flows from investing activities
Paymenis for secured mortgage loans {575,024,453) (610,919,745} (467,383,694)
Receipis from settlernent of morigage loans 316,057,835 357,057,835 198,503,376
Payments for purchase of investments {7,375,912) (75,321,279 (33,000,000)
Receipts from sale of investments 46,321,273 48,000,000 - ‘
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from investing ‘
activities (226,021,257 (226,540,637) (301,880,318) i
Cash flows from financing activities !
Proceeds from borrowings 30,416,662 30,416,662 - :
Receipts from the issue of units 387,598,304 387,598,304 403,970,617
Distributions paid (43,995,087)  (43,995,087) (99,370,045) !
Payment for redemption of units {219.782,609) {219,782 809} {27,588 320} '
Nef cash inftow/(outflow) frem financing :
activifies 154,236,970 154,236,970 277012352
i

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash |
eguivalents (13,921,409) (14,272,103} 13,354,007 i
Cash and cash equivaients at beginning of the |
year 46,917,145 46,917,105 33 563,008

13{(2) 32,995,697 32,645,002 46,917,105

Cash and cash equivalents t the end of the
year :
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LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
Naotes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2006

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

The financial repert of LM Mortgege Income Fund (“the Scheme™} for the year ended 30 Juns 2006 was
authorised for issuz in accordance with a resclution of the directors of the Responsible Entity on 21
August 2006,

The Scheme is an Australian registered Scheme, constituted on {3 April 1999, The Scheme will
terminate on 13 April 2080 unless terminated earier in accordance with the provision of the Scheme
Conistituiion (as amended).

LM Investment Muanagement Limited, the Responsibie Entity of the Scheme, is incorporated and
domiciled in Australia. The registered office of the Responsible Entity is located at Level 4, 9 Beach
Rozd, Surfers Paradise, Queensland.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set cut
below. These policies have been consistently applied to alf periods presented, uniess otherwise stated in
the following text.

a) Basis of accounting

This financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with the
Seheme Constitution, and the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, which includes epplicable
Accommting Standerds.

The financiai statements have heen prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the valuation
of invesiments in finencial mssets, which have been measured at fzir vajue or amortised cost.

The balance sheet presents assets and linbilities in decreasing order of liquidity and does not distinguish
between current and non-current items, in accordance with AASB 101 — Presentation of Financial
Statements.

b) Statement of compliance

The financial report complies with Australian Accounting Stendards, which include Austalian
equivatents to International Financia! Reporting Stendards ('AIFRS'). Compiiance with AIFRS ensures
that the financisl report, comprising the financial statements and notes theteio, complies with
Intemational Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS”).

This is the entity's first AIFRS consolidaied annual repori based on AIFRS and comparative figures for
the year ended 30 June 2005 have been restated accordingly. The consolidated entity has elected not to
apply the exemnption under AASB 1 Firsi-time Adoption of Australian Equivalents ta Imernational
Finamcial Reporiing Stemdards from having to apply AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Disciosure and
Presemtation, and AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (o the eomparative
period.

An explanation of how the transition to AIFRSs has affected the reported financial posttion, financial
performance and cash fiows of the Scheme and the consolidated entity is provided in note 2(g). This
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noto includes reconciliations of equity and profit or ioss for comparative periods reported under
Australian GAAP {(AGAAP) to those reported for those periods under AIFRSs.

Australian Accounting Standards that have recently been issued or amended but are not yet effective
heve not been adopted for the ennual reporiing period ending 30 June 2006 are shown in the following
tables. None of the standards issued or amended have an impact on the accounting policies adopted by

the Scheme.
AASB Amend- | Afiected Standard (s) Application date | Application
men{ of standard daie for entity
2004-3 AASE 1 Firsitime adopiion of AIFRS 1 January 2006 I July 2006
AASB 10} Presertation of Financial Statements
AASE 124 Relared Party Disclgsures
206051 AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and | | fanuary 2006 1 July 2006
Measurement
2005-4 AASE 139 Financial Instruments: Recogrition and | } kanttary 2006 1 July 2006
Measurement, AASR 132 Financiel Instruments:
Disclosure and Presentosion, AASE | Firsi-time
adoption of AIFRS, AASB 1023 General insurance
Coriracts aod AASE 1038 Life insurance
Contracts
2005-5 AASB | First-time adoption of AJFRS and AASB i January 2006 i July 2006
139 Finonetal Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement
2005-6 AASE 3 Business Combinations 1 January 2006 1 July 2006
20055 AASB 4 Insurance Coniracts, AASB 1023 General | | January 2006 1 July 2006
insurance Cantracts, AASB 139 Finanrial
Instrumenis: Recognition and Measurement and
AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Diselosure and
Fresentation
2005-10 AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and | 1 Janary 2006 1 July 2006

Presemation, AASR 191 Presentotion of Financial
Y s, AASB |14 Seg Reporting, AASB
117 Leases, AASB 133 Eornings per Share, AASB
13% Financial Instrumerus: Recegrition end
Measurement, AASB | Firsi-time adoption af
AIFRS, AASB 4 insurance Comracts, AASB 1023
Gieneral insurance Contraces and AASB 138 Life
Insurance Comracty

New or revised Stundard/ UIG Application date | Application

AfTected Standards of standard/ date for entity
interpretation

AASB 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures 1 January 2007 I July 2007

UIG 8 Scope of AASR 2 1 May 2006 1 July 2006
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¢} Basis of conselidation

This consolidated financial repert comprises the financial report of LM Mortgage Income Fund and its
subsidiary as at 30 June 2006 (“the consolidated entity™). The financial repart of the subsidiary is
prepared for the same reporting period as Scheme, using consistent accounting policies.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements all intercompany balances and income and exXpenses
and profitand losses resulting fron: intra-group transections have been eliminated in full. Adjustments
are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that mey exist.

Subsidiaries are fully eonsolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group and ceass to
be consolidated from the date on which control s transferred out of the group. The subsidiary, “LM MIF
Investments Pry Ltd” has been consolidated from the date on which control was transferred to the group.
This was the 22nd December 2005. The acquisition of LM MIF Jnvestments Pty Lid has been accounted
for using the purchase method of accounting,

d) Signiffcant sccounting judgements, estimates and assumptioas
{1} Significant accounting jedgements

In the process of appiying the Group's accounting policies, management has made judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have had an impact on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements. No judgements have been determined 1o be individually significant.”

!
{j} Significant accounting estimates and assumptions [

The camrying amounts of certain assets and lisbilities are cfien determined based on estimates and
asgumptions of future events. The key estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of certain assets and lizbilities within the next annual
reporting pericd are:

Loan Provisioning

The Scheme determines whether loans are impaired on an ongoing basis. This requires an estimation
of the value of the future cash fiows. The Scheme's policy for calculation of impairment losses is
disclosed in Note 2(h)(iL).

e} Cosh and cash equivaients

Cash and cash equivaients includes cash in hand, deposits heid at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid ipvestments with original maturitics of three months or less, and bank overdrafls, For the pusposes
of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined
sbove, net of cutstanding bank overdrafts,
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f} Income

Income is recognised to the cxtent that it is probable that the economic benefits will fiow to the Scheme
and the income can be refiably measured. The following specific recognition criferia must also be met
before income is recognised:

3] Dividend and distribution income

Dividend or distribution income is recognised when the shareholders’ or unithelders’ right 10
seceive the payment is established.

i Enterest income

Interest incomne is recognised as the interest acerues {using the effective interest rate method,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrovnent) to the net carrying amount of the financial ssset,

fii} Changes in the fair vaiue of investments

Gains or losses on investments held for wading are caleulated as the difference between the fair
value at sale, ot at year end, and the fair value at the previons valwation point. This inchudes both
realised and unrealised gains and josses,

¢) Borrowing costs

Interest on borowings is reeognised in the income statement in the period te which it refatee. Issue costs
associated with borrowings are cepitalised and amortised over the term of the borrowing to which they
relate using the effective interest method.

b) Investments and other financial asvets

Financial assets in the scope of AASB 130 Financial Insiruments: Recognition and Measurement ave
classified as efiher financial assets at fair vaiue through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-io-
maturity investments, or available-for-sate investments, a5 appropriate. When financiai assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value
through profit or loss, directly attributable transactions costs. The conselidated entity determines the
classification of its financial assets at infial recognition.

All regular way purchases and sales of finaneial assets are recognised on the trade date ie. the date that the
Scheme cornmits 1o surchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets under contracts that require delivery of the assets within the period established generaily by
reguiation or convention in the marketpiace.

i) Financial assete at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets classified as held for trading are included in the catepory ‘financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss”. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are ecquired for the
parpose of selling in the near term, Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unicss they are
designated as effective hedging instruments, Gains or losses on investments held for trading are
recognised in profit or loss,
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iij Loans and reccivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financizl assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted ih an active market, Such assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are
derecognised or impaired, as weli as through the amortisation process,

Loans and receivables are assessed for impairment at each reporting period. An allowance is made
for doubtful debts when there is objective evidence that the consolidated sntity will not be able to
colect the recetvabies. Impairment losses are writien: off when identified. Losses expected as a
result of fiture events are not recognised. If a provision for impairment has been recognised in
relation to 2 Joan, write offs for bad debts are made against the provision. If no provision for
impaitment has previously been recogrised, write offs for bad debts are recopnised as an expense in
the income statemend.

The amount provided for impairment of loans is determined by management of the Scheme and the
Credit Committee. A provision is made of loans in arrears where the collectibility of the debts is
cansidered doubtful by estimation of expected losses it relation to foan portfolios where speeific
identification is impracticable,

The components of impaired assets are as follows:

"Loans in arrears” are loans and advances for which there is reasonable doubt that the Scheme will be
able to collect all amounts of principal and interest in accordance with the terms of the agreement.

"Assets acquired through the enforcement of security” are assets scquired in full or partial settiement
of 4 loan or similar facility through the enforcement of security arrengements.

“Restructured loans” arise when the borrower is granted a concession due to continuing difficulties in
mesting the original terms and now terms are not comparable to the revised temms. These joans are
removed from “restructure loans” after a period of 12 months of performance against foan revised
terrns and conditions. Loans with revised terms are included in ‘loans in amears’ when impairment
provisions are required,

i) Advisor Commissions

Advisor commissions may be paid to the unitholders” investment advisors and are calculated as a
percentage of funds invested in the Scheme. These commissions are paid moathly in amears and are
brought to account on an accrual basis. The Scheme ceases to pay advisor commissions whep the related
units are redeemed.

i) Fayables

Payables are carried at amortised cost and represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the
consolidated entity prior 1o the end of the financial year 1het are unpaid and arise when the consolidated
entity becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the purchases of these poods and services.

The distribution amount payable to investors as at the reporting date is recognised separately on the
batance sheet as unit holders are presently entitled to the distributable income s at 30 June 2006 under
the Scheme’s Constitution.
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k) Increase/decrease in net assets attribatahie to unitholders

Non-distributable ineome is transferred directly 1o net assets attributable to unitholders and may consist
of unrealised changes in the net fair value of investments, acerued income not yet assessable, expenses
acerued for which are not yet deductible, net capital losses and tax free or tax deferred income. Net
capital gains on the realisation of any investments (including any adjustments for tax deferred incame
previously taken directly to net assets atiributable to unitholders) and acerued incame not yot assessabile
wili ¢ included in the determination of distributeble income in the same year in which it becomes
assessable for tax. Excess and undistributed income is z!so transferred directly (o net assets attributable to
unitholders. .

) Distributions

In secordance with the Scheme's Constitution, the Scheme fully distributes its disiribuable income to
unitholders. Distributions are payabie montitly. Such distributions are determined by reference to the
taxable income of the Scheme. Distributable income includes capitai gains arising from the disposal of
investments, reslised gains and losses on investments that are recognised as income are transferred to net
assels attributable to unitholders and are not asscssable and distributable until realised. Capital losses are
not distributed to unitholders but are retained to be offset against any realised capital pains.

ni} Goods and services tax (GST)

The GST incwred on the costs of various services provided to the responsible entity by third panies such
&s andit fees, custodial services and investment management fees, have been passed onte the Scheme.
The: Scheme qualifies for Reduced Input Tax Credits (RITC's) at a rate of 75%.

Henoe investment management fees, custodial fees and other expenses have been recognised in the
statement of finzneial performance net of the amount of GST recoverable from the Australian Taxation
Office (ATO). Accounts payabic are inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from the
ATO is included in receivable in the balance sheet, Cash fiows relating 1o GST are included in the cash
flow statement on & gross basis,

The GST component of cash flaws arising from investing and financing activities recoverable or payable
to the ATO is classified as an operating cash flow,

u) Applications and redemptions

Applications received for units in the Scheme are recorded when units are issued in the Scheme.
Redemptions from the Scheme are recorded when the canceltation of units redecemed ocours. Hnit
redemption prices are determined by reference of the net assets of the Scheme divided by the number of
units on issue,
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o) Iscome Tax

Under current jegisiation, the Scheme is not subject to income tax provided the distributable income of
the Scheme is fully distributed either by way of cash or reinvestment (ie Unitholders are presently
entitied to the income of the Scheme).

The price of 8 unit is based upon market vaiues of underlying zssets and thus may include a share of
unrealised capital gains. Should such a gain be realised, that portion of the gain that is subject to capital
gains tax will be distributed so that the Scheme is not subject to capital gains 1ax. Realised capital losses
are not distribited to unitholders but ere retained in the Scheme to be offset against any reslised capital
gains, If realised capital gains exceed realised capital losses, the sxcess is distributed 1o unitholders.

p) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration
received net of issue costs associated with the horrowing. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subscquently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Amortised cost is ealeulated by taking into account any issue costs, and any discount or premium on
settlement.
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q) Impaect of the adoption of AIFRS

The impacts of the adoption of AIFRS on the total unitholders” funds at the date of transition and on
unitholders’ funds and profit at the end of the last reporting period reported under previous AGAAP are
illustrated below,

i) Reconcilintion of total anithalders® funds 25 presented under AGAAP to equity under
AIFRS:

As at 30 As ot LJuly

June 2005 2004
$ $
£pening equity under previous AGAAP . 692,676,583 377455577
Reclassification of unitholders’ funds to debt {a} (692,676,583} (377,455,577

Closing equity under ATFRS at 3¢ June 2005 - -

ii} Recounciliation of profit for the year ended 30 June 2003 under previous AGAAP to that
under AIFRS:

As at 30
June 2005
g
Prior vear profit as previously veported under AGAAP 39,820,485
Reclassification of unitholders” distribitions to financing costs {2} (3%,637,865)
{Increase)/decrease in net assets attributable to unitisolders (&} (182,620)

Frior year profit under AIFRS -

iif} Explanation of material adjusiments ¢o the Cash Flow Statement

There are no material differences between the Cash Flow Statement presonted under AIFRS and the
Cesh Flow Statement preseated under AGAAP,

{a) Under AASB 132 Financial Instruments: Disciosures and Presentation, contracival obligations are
regarded as labilities. As vnitholders have the sbility to redesm units from the Scheme, al} net assets
attributable fo unitholders will be recognised as liabilities of the Scheme, rather than es equity. The
classification of net assets atiributabie to uritholders does not alier the enderlying economic interest of
the unitholders in the net assets and net income attributable to unitholders of the Scheme.
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3. FINANCE INCOME AND DISTRIBUTIONS TO UNITHOLDERS

(a) Noo-Interest income 2806 2006 2005
Consolidated Scheme Scheme
3 3 b
Changes in the fair vaiue of iavestments 2,136,504 1,123,754 $36,657
Other income:
Defanlt management fees 2,112,240 2,112,240 -
Losn origination fees 172,620 172,620 -
Penzlty interest on default loans 787,241 787,241 -
Other income 215,793 215,793 96,648
3,287,894 3,287,854 56,648
(b} Ioterest income
2006
Consolidated Scheme
Average Average Average Average
batance Income rate balance Income rate
3 § % 3 3 Yo
Cash assets 40,199,800  2220,219 5.52 39,754,106 2,201,005 5.54
Loans and advances 728,142,186 74,428,527 1031 ] 752,713,615 75,378,135 10.i1
768,341,995 76,649,346 10,08 792467721 77,579,140 .88
il
Scheme
Average Average
belance Incorme rate
§ ¥ %
Cash assets 60,977,260 3,244,715 5.32
Loans and advances 469,973,791 46,683,982 0,93
530,951,65] 49,928 757 9.40
{c) Distributions to unitholders 2806 2606 2005
Ceonsolidated Scheme Scheme
$ § §
Distributions paid 56,555,576 56,555,576 35,555,484
Distributions paysbile 5,821,001 5,821,001 4,082,381
62,376.577 62,376,577 39,637,865
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4. OTHER EXPENSES

L.ozn otigination expensss

Auditor’s remuneration

Produet disclosure statement production costs
Other

5. AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

Audit and review of the financial reports
Other regulatory audit services

2006 2006 2085
Consolidated Scheme Scheme
3 b $
172,620 172,620 -
90,265 94,265 54,392
57,734 57,734 54,817
305,182 222,226 [24,.310
625,801 542,845 233,519
20606 2006 2085
Consolidated Scheme Scheme
5 3 5
75,740 75,740 44,392
14,525 14,525 10,000
90,625 80,265 54,392

These expenses have been inciuded within ‘Other Expenses® in the Income Statement,

6. CHARNGES INNET ASSETS ATTRIBUTARLE TO UNITHOLDERS

Al units in the Scheme are attributed with a value of $1. The units on issue in the Scheme and the
consolidated entity are equal. Movetnents in number of units and net assets attributable to unitholders

during the year were as follows:

Net essets atiributable to unitholders
Class A
Opening balance

Units issued during the year

Units redeemed during the vear

Units issued upon reinvestment of distributions
Closing Balance

Class B

Opening baiance

Units issued during the year

Units redeemed during the year

Units issued upon reinvestment of distributions
Closing Balance

3¢ Tune 2006 30 June 2005

Scheme
$

414,815,583

Scheme

§

242,498,158

219807304 222,079,618
(129,330,909)  (60,199,700)
17,182,871 10,437,467
592574849 414.815.563
277861,000 135,140,000
167,691,000 181,891,000
(90,452,000)  (39,170,000)
355,100,000  277.861.000
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3¢ June 2006 36 June 2005
TOTAL # B $
Opening balance 692,676,583 692,676,583 177,638,198 377,455,578
Units issued during the year
387,596,304 387,598,304 403,970,618 403,970,618

Units redeemed during the year

(219,782,909) (219,782,909} (99,369,700) (99,369,700}
Units issued on retnvestment of
distributions 17,182,871 17,182,871 10,437467 10,437,467
Transfers to and from the income
statement 182,620
Closing Balance B77,674,849 8T77,674.84% 692,676,583 691,676,583

Class A consists of unit holders who are entitled to receive the dectared distribution rate.

Ciass B consists of unit holders with an investment greater than $1,000,000. The distribution rate will be
deterrnined by the Respornsible Entity. The Responsible Entity has the discretion to waive the whole or
part of the 1% trailing commission and the whole ar part of its management fee for this class of unit

holders.

All initholders are entitled fo receive distributions as declared from time to time and are entitied to one
vote per unit at unitholders’ meetings, In the event of winding up of the Scheme, all unitholders rank

after creditors and are equally entitled to the proceeds of liquidation,

7. BISTRIBUTIONS TO UNITHOLDERS

3¢ June 30 June 30 Junc 30 June
2806 P21 2085 2045
% CPU $ CPy
Distributions
30 June
62,376,577 39,637,865 572
8. INVESTMENTS 2006 2486 2005
Consclidsted Scheme Scheme
_ % $ §
Unlisted managed investment schemes {i) - 50,953
Financiel assets held at fair value through profit
and loss {ify 5,659,827 - 33,321,273
Envestment in subsidiary (iii) H -
5, 659,827 i 33,381,226

(i) The Scheme's investment in a related managed investment scheme was redeemed when the related

scheme was deregistered during the period,

(i) At 30 June 2006, the consolidated entity held 4,978,736 units in the PM Capital Enhanced Yield

Fund {2005 29,791,035}, The unit price at 30 June 2006 was $1.1368.

{ili) On 22 December 2005, the Scheme gained controi of a subsidiary company, LM MiTF investments
Pty Limited, & company newly incorporated in Australia on that date. The Scheme owned 100% of the
issued share capital of the subsidiary of 81 at 30 June 2006.
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9. LOANS AND ADVANCES

Secured Mortgage Loans

Other Unsecured Loans — related party
Provision for impairment

Net loans and advances

(@) Agpregate amounts receivable from related partiey
Directors and director-related enfities

Other related entities

Related managed investment schemes

Provision for impairment

(8} Meaturity analysis
Less than 3 montis
3-6 months

6-12 months

12-18 months

18-24 months

24-36 months

36-48 months

438-60 months

{c) Concemtration of risk

2086 2086 2005
Consolidated Scheme Scheme
3 3 5
868,300,393 868,300,393 612,670,503
- 6,600,000 -
(1,707,999 - {1,707,5%9) -
866,592,394 872,592,394 612,676,503
- 6,000,000
- 6,000,000 -
170,417,544 170,417,544 124,063,471
152,224,418 152,224,418 74,257,003
361,643,592 361,643,552 189,040,671
89,620,092 85,620,052 104,460,746
14,716,137 18,716,137 71,235,380
32,691,153 32,691,153 15,630,223
10,610,549 10,610,549 2,702,500
40,076,508 40,076,909 31,340,505
869,108,773 869,108,773 612,670,503

The loan portfolic of the Scheme does nat include any foan or groups of related loans which represent

10% or more of net assets.

(d) Provisions for impairment

Until 20 Apni! 2006, the Scheme had an amangement with a related scheme whereby the reiated scheme
provided underwriting facilities by arrangement or for loans in defaule. This srrangement no longer

exists and the Scheme now bears the full eredit risk associated with its secured morigage loan portfolio
and recognises penalty interest incoms from borrowers in default,

The impairment loss on loans and receivables expense comprises:

Specific provision

Collective impairment provision

Impairment losses recognised directly in the Income
Statemnent

1,707,959 1,707,599 -
1,606,073 1,006,673 -
2,714,672 2,714,872
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8. LOANS AND ADVANCES (cont) 2806 2006 2005
Caonsolidated Scheme Schems
3 $ b
Specific Provision
Opening balance - - -
Impairment losses provided for during year 1,707,999 1,767,999 -
Closing balance 1,707,999 1,707,999 -

Collective impeirment provision
Opening balance -
Impairment losses provided for during vear - - -

Closing balance .

TOTAL PROVISION 1,767,993 £ 707,999 -

Vhe colicotive provision for impairment is cafeuiated by placing loans into pools with similar risk
characteristics and collectively assessing for impairment.

Default loans with specific provisien

Loan balance 42,661,029 42,661,029 8,158,730
Specific provision for impairment (1,707,999 (1,707,999 -

Net default loans 40,953,030 40,953,030 5,158,730

Loans in arrears
L.oan balance 54,407,336 54,407,336 65,787,754

Restructured Loans

Four morigage ioens totalling $59,717,035 (2005: nil} were classified as restructured loans. These loans
previously in default or arrears are now performing at 36 June 2006 under revised loan terms and
conditions.

Since 30 June 2006, mortgage loans in default totallin g 39,098,947 and mortpage loans in arvears
totalling $18,311,013 have been recovered in full.
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10, INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND ADVANCES

2006 2006 2005
Consolidated Scheme Scheme
$ $ S .
Secured bank koan 30,416,662 30,416,662 -

During the year, the Scheme entered into a committed financing agreement which provides access to
$100m for & period of 2 years, thereafier extendabie af the bank’s option, When drawn, the loan is
secured by the assets of the Scheme. 1

11, RELATED PARTIES

Responsible Entity

The Responsible Entity of LM Mortgage Income Fund ts LM Investment Management Limited (ABN 68
077 208 461). Administration and funds management services are provided to the Scheme on behalf of
the Responsible Eatity by LM Administration Pty .44, an associate of the Responsible Entity. LM
Administration Pty Ltd is paid & management fee directly from the Scheme.

Castodian .
The Custodian of the Scheme is Trust Company of Australia Limited,

Direciory

‘The names of each person holding the position of director of LM Investment Management Limited
during the financial year are disclosed in Note 14,

Direcrors' rermnuneration

No amounts are paid by the Scheme directly o the directors of the Responsibie Entity. The amount of
remuneration paid by the Responsible Entity and its related parties to direciors of the responsible entity n
connection with their responsibilities for the Scheme s separately identified in Note 14,

Birectors’ holdings of units

The interests of LM Investment Management Limited and its associates in the Scheme at year-end sre sef
out below.

2006 2006 2005
$ $ g
Consolidated Scheme Scheme
« LM Tnvestment Management Limited 192,138 192,138 176,975
- Directors and director related entities - - 31,608
- Other Associates of LM Investment
Manzagement Limited 355,100,000 355,108,000 277,861,000
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Other transactions with the Scheme

From time to time the direciors of LM Investment Management Limited, or their director-related entities,
may invest or withdraw from the Scheme. These investments ar withdrawals are on the same terms and
conditions as those entered into by other Scheme investors. Apart from the details disclosed in this note,
o director has entered into a material contract with the Scheme since the end of the previous financial
year and there were no material contracts involving directors’ interests subsisting st year-end,

Related party transactions

Until 20 April 2006, the LM Special Perticipation Fund (a related scheme) provided income assurenice 1o
investors in the Scheme by agreeing to underwrife interest payments to the Scheme al the discretion of
the Responsible Entity, on behalf of borrowers. The LM Specia! Participation Fund did not guarantee the
payment of all income, or return of capital. During the year, the Scheme received underwriting payments
on behalf of barrowers from the LM Special Participation Fund totalling $4,789,995 (2005; $9,014,725).

At the date of this report, the LM Special Participation Fund is in the process of being wound down and
deregistered.

Prior to the LM Special Pariicipation Fund being wound down, the Scheme purchased receivables of the
1M Special Participation Fund totalling $8,110,374 at 26 April 2006.

Administration and funds management services are provided to the Scheme on behalf of the Respensible
Entity by LM Administration Pty Limited, an assoctate of the Responsible Entity, LM Administration
Pry Litd is paid a management fee for these services direstly from Scheme assers.

During the year, LM Investment Management Limited was paid foan origination foes directly from
borrowers. From I May 2006, loan origination fees are now recognised in the Income Statement of the
Scheme. Loan origination fees received by the Scheme during the year were $172,620 (2005: Snilj of
witich §172,620 was reimbursed by the Scheme 10 the responsible entity for the administration of loan
originetion scrvices.

On 22 December 2605, the Scheme gained control of 4 newly formed entity, LM MIF investmenl Piy
Limited, an entity incorporated to invest in ‘at call’ securities on behalf of the Scheme. At the date of
inception, the assets and liabilities of LM MIF Investments Pty Limited were nil. The LM MIF advances
unsecured, interest bearing funds to LM MIF Investments Pry Ltd. The interest rate charged on the boen
approximates the return achieved from the investments undertaken on the Scheme’s behalf. The RE does
not receive any fees as a result of this joan.
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2046 2605 2005
LConsolidnied Scheme Scheme
3 ¥ 3
Total remuneration received or due and
receivable
& Fees for the year paid directly by the
Scheme to LM Administeation Ply Lid 10,683,880 10,683,880 7,874,560

¥ Fees eamned by LM Administration Py Ltd
fram other approved schemes invested in ;
by Scheme. - - -
®  Other expenses including administration
expenses incurmed by the Responsible
Entity, which are reimbursed to the
Responsible Entity in accordance with the
provisions of the Constitution. 439,342 489,342 127,880
Custodian's remuneration
® Custodian’s foes paid by Responsible ’
Entity and reimbursed by the Scheme 305,058 3654050 235,055
Balance with related pardles
Aggregate amounts receivable from related
parties by the S8cheme were as follows:

& LM Administration Pty Limited 3,869,587 3,869,587 3,354,615
(management fees prepaid by the
Scheme)(1)

v LM MIF invesimenis Ply Limied (i} - 6,000,600 .

®  Australizn International Investments Pry 1,650,000 1,690,000 1,696,000
Limited (i)

(i} These amounts are included in prepayments. No amounts are payable to related parties by the

Scheme. The average monthiy balance of prepayments during the vear was $3,504,032 which was non- ‘

interest bearing. interest foregone on the above amount if calcutated af the weighted average cash rate of
5.54% would have been $194,123. If this revenue had been collected, the sum forsgone would have been
paid to LM Admisistration Py Lid as management fees during the year.

i) LM MIF investments Pty Limited kns an unsecured interest besring loan with the Scheme, This
facility was entered into on an arms length basis and is on normaj terms and conditions,

(iti) Peter Charles Drake is a director and guarantor of Australian Interriational Investment Services Pty .

Lsd which is a joint borrower in 4 loan facility outstanding to the Scheme as at 30 June 2006 for
$1,650,000 (MORT 2157} This transaction was approved on an arms length basts and is an normal
{erms and conditions,

The Livi Managed Performance Fund has second mortgages on loans that are first mongages of the LM
Morigage Income Fund totaifing $19,636,287 (2005: $2,831,822). The LM Managed Performance Fund
may on occasion pay development and construction costs on those related loans.

595



Page 30 of 42 Docld: 023134667 Org No:0RY 343 288

Investing activities

2

3

LM MORTGAGE INCOME FUND
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The Scheme may purchase and sell units in other approved schemes or investment entities operated by
LM Investment Management Limited or its associates in the ordinary course of business at application
and redemption prices calculated in accordanice with the constitutions of thase schemes, Details of the
Scheme’s investment in other schemes operated by LM Investment Management Limited or its affiliates

is set out below:

Scheme name Investment | Interestheld | Number of | Nomber of | Distribution

at year end in refated Units Units paid ar

# scheme at acguired redeemed payable
year end during the | during the
year- yenr

30 June 2006
LM Select Morigage Income
Fund - 0.00%4 - - -
30 June 2005
LM Select Mortgage Income
Fund 59,653 0.75% - - -

These invegtments are on nermal terms and conditions.

Unititalder investing activities

Details of holdings in the Scheme by LM Investment Management Limited, its affiliates including
directors and director related persons or other schemes managed by LM Investment Management Limited

are set out below:

Eantity investment | Enterest beld | Units issued Units Distributions

at year end in the during the | redeemed patd and

# scheme at year during payabie
vear end the vesr

3G June 2006
LM Currency Protected
Australian Income Fund 67,000,000 763% 61,395,600 ) 8,785,000 2,546,668
LM Special Participation Find - - 230,000 1 1,435,000 14,720
LM Managed Performance Fund 3,100,060 0.58% 20,420,000 ; 17,840,000 871,807
LM Wholesale Morigage 283,000,000 32.24% §5,560,060 | 59,500,600 22,271,669
Income Fund
LM Property Performance Fund - - 126,000 | 2,892,800 84,380 |
LM Investment Management Lid 192,138 6.02% - - 15,266
Lisa M Darcy - - 8,955 10,187 150
Belinda J Drake - - 18,503 48,880 2307
James and Pamels Craip 314,743 0.04% 300,000 - 14,832
Harold Ward 20,641 0.00% 26,000 - 36
Total 355,626,922 4050% | 17,038,458 | MS11,067, 25821844
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Entity Investment | nterest held | Units issued Units Distribufions
at year end in the during the | redeemed paid and
# scheme af year during payable
vear end the year
39 June 2005
LM Currency Protected
Ausirelian Income Fund 14,350,000 2.08% 14,750,000 366,000 444,222
LM Special Participation Fund 1,185,000 0.17% 6,330,000 7,386,800 106,630
Beimda § Drake 30,377 - 25236 - 1,408
LM Managed Performance Fund 2,520,000 0.36 % 14,088,000 § 19,697,000 572,424
LM Wholesale Morigage 257,000,000 37.10% | 132,322,600 - 14,455,399
Income Fund
LM Property Performance Fund 2,766,600 0.40 % 3,031,600 357,000 99,397
LM Investment Management fid 176,975 (.03 % - 13,956 14,052
Lisa M Daroy 1,232 - 8,755 11,068 143
Total 278,069,584 40.14 % | 170,554,991 | 27825024] 15,693,675
12. RECEIVABLES 2006 2606 2805
Consolidated Scheme Scheme
by 3 . $
Interest and distribution receivable 212,146 148,511 110,941
Mortgage interest receivable 1,808,959 1,808,959 535,087
Defauit management fee receivabie 2,112,240 2,112,240 -
Penalty interest receivabie 82,163 82,163 -
G57T receivable 121,769 121,769 185,783
Other 4,489 4,489 3,499
4,341,766 4.278,133 1,235.20]
13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2006 2006 2005
Consohidated Scheme Scheme
b § b
(2} Reconciliztion of cash and cash
equivalents
For the purposes of the Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivaients
comprise:
- Cesh at bank and in hand 32,995,697 32,645,002 46,917,105

Cash st bank snd int hand earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.
Fhe fair value of cash and cash equivalents is $32,995,697 (2005: $46,917,405).
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2806 2006 2005
Consolidated Scheme Scheme
$ § g
{b) Recencifiation of change in net assets
attributable to unitholders to net cash flows
from operatiag activities
Change in net assets attributable fo unitholders - . 152,620
Adfustments for:
Distributions to unitholders 62,376,577 62,376,577 39,637,865
{Increase)/decrease in interest ang distribution (3,350,016)  (3,106,847) {483,260}
receivable :
(Increasc)/decrease in other receivables (1,100,004  (1,100,004) {1,379.662}
Increaseddecrease) in payvables {63,679) (138,136) 264,512
Net cash flows from/{used in) operating
activities 57,862,878 58,031,591 38,222,074

{c} Reinvestment of distributions

During the financial year, the Scheme issued 17,182,871 units (2005: 10.437,812) as 2 result of
reinvestment of distribution by unitholders totaling $17,182,87) (2005: $10,437,812). These
transactions have not been included in the Cash Flow Statement.

14. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONAL RISCLOSURES

{a) Details of Key Management Persannel
(i) Key Memagement Personnel

The Key Management Persorme! (KMP) of the Scheme were deemed to be the Directors of the Responsible
Entity. The Directors of the responsibic eatity during the year were;

Execufive directors

Mir Peter Charles Drake Appointed 31 January 1997

Ms Lisa Maree Darcy Appointed 15 Septernber 2003

Mr Eghard van der Hoven Appointed 22 June 2006

Nomexecutive directors

Mr Martyn Andrew Carne - Appointed 18 July 2002; resigned 6 June 2006
Mr John Ditlon Appointed § June 2005
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b Compensation of Key Management Personnel
(i Compensation Policies and Principles

Remuneration of KMP is paid by LM Administration Pty Ltd, appointed by LM Investment Management
Ltd &3 per its scrvice agreement with that entity. The KMP do not receive any remuncration directly
from LM Mortgage Income Fund and there are no agreements in place between the KMP and the
Scheme. The remuneration of KMP as disclosed below has been aliocated based on the each KMP’s cost
of remuneration applicable to the Scheme. The principles used to allocate these cosis (for disciosure
purposes only) are discussed below.

)] Executive Directors

The Executive Directors of the Board of the Directors of LM Investment Management Lid are
responsible for determining and reviewing compensation arrangements for the KMP of the Responsible
Entity. The Executive directors assess the appropriateness of the nature and amount of emoluments of the
KMP on & periodic basis by reference to relevant employment market conditions with the overall
objective of ensuring maximum stakeholder benefit from the retention of a hiph quality board, His
intended that the manner of payment chosen will bz aptimal for the recipient without creating undue cost
for the Responsible Entity.

It is the Executive Directors’ policy that employment agreemenis shall only be entered into with the
Executive Directors of the Responsible Entity, but with no other parties.

(ifi}  Non- executive directors

Fees paid 1o non-executive directors are based on decisions made by the Executive Directors, This takes
into accourt workload requirements and responsibilities of each Director, Fees for duties as Directors are
rot paid to executive Directors as their remuneration is provided as part of their normal terms and
conditions.

fivi  Principies of KMP Remuneration Aliocations

For ail schemes menaged by the Responsibie Entity, the cost of total KMP remuneration has been
allocated to each scheme. The Responsitle Entity has estimated the amourt of time spent by each KMP

performing responsibiiities and duties to individual schemes, ang on a percentage basis, has allocated the

remuneration cost to each scheme. Where a KMP has not spent time specifically on g scheme, but rather
has acted in a role as KMP of the Responsibie Entity only, remuneration cost has been allocated evenly
across all schemes.
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